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DNEEH
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRE®|E

GROUP RESULTS

Turnover of the Group for the current year of 2009/10 was
HK$1,310,042,000 as compared with last year’s HK$1,625,529,000, and
the overall profit was HK$103,646,000 (2008/09: HK$72,167,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Despite the fact that both the Group’s sales turnover and gross profit
had dropped, the Group’s profit had recorded an increase of 44% to
HK$103,646,000 as compared with last year’s HK$72,167,000. The main

reasons for the increase were due to:
a substantial gain from the sale of our property in Macau; and
2. a gain from the revaluation of our investment properties.

Overall garment business to Europe, our major market, suffered because

of its weak economy caused by the recent financial crisis.

Our manufacturing business in Panyu, The People’s Republic of China
(“the PRC”), encountered a difficult year especially in the dyeing and
finishing sectors due to a hike in energy prices and fierce competition
from small plants that swarmed into the mercerized market which has
always been our specialty. Increase of yarn prices, shortage of sewing
workers, the seasonality of orders and the continuous appreciation
of Renminbi also contributed to the poor performance of our
manufacturing business as a whole. The domestic business in the PRC did
not live up to its expectation mainly due to shipment delays which was a

direct result of labour shortage.

Result of our investments in Wuxi No. | Cotton Investment Co., Ltd.
and its subsidiaries (the “Wuxi Group”) at Wuxi, the PRC, was better

than expected as yarn prices and business improved.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
Re il - M- oK AW H

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRE®|E

OUTLOOK

Overall, the directors expect the coming year to be a challenging one.

Shortage of sewing workers in the PRC, increase of raw material
prices and the rise of manufacturing costs make it even more difficult
to improve our business. However for the first time in many years,
most customers understood this cost structure and accepted our
price increases. However this could not benefit our profit as it was
barely enough to compensate our increased costs. As for our Panyu
operation, through the closure of one of its manufacturing plants, the
restructure of our dyeing and finishing plants, the reduction of our
overhead expenses and with the improvement of its domestic business
in the PRC, management is confident that the manufacturing business
will be improved in the coming year. The weak Euro and Pound Sterling,
however, is expected to further decrease our profit margin in the

coming year.

On the positive side, business and profit from our Wuxi textile

investment in the coming year are expected to improve further.

APPRECIATION

| would like, on behalf of the Board and shareholders, to express our
appreciation to the Company’s employees for their efforts and loyal

service to the Company during the past year.

By Order of the Board
Chan Sui Kau

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 July 2010
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWED N

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 March 2010 was
HK$1,310,042,000 compared with HK$1,625,529,000 for the year ended
31 March 2009, and the Group’s profit for the year was HK$103,646,000
compared with last year’s profit of HK$72,167,000, an increase of 44%.

GARMENT BUSINESS

We operate our textiles and garment business under the names of
Yangtzekiang Garment Limited and Hong Kong Knitters Limited. Our
products include men’s and women'’s shirts, trousers, shorts, polo shirts,
t-shirts, jackets and knitted outerwear. The office in Hong Kong is the
headquarters for our whole group where we concentrate on the role of
garment trading, sourcing and the overall control of our own production
facilities in the PRC as well as monitoring the subcontractors in the PRC,
Bangladesh, India, Cambodia, Myanmar and Vietnam. We also have sales
offices in the PRC at Panyu and Shanghai which oversee our domestic

sales in the regions.

Our wholly owned production facilities in the PRC are all located in
Panyu. They are Exquisite Knitters (Guangzhou) Ltd. (“EQK”) and
Whampoa Garment Mfg. (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (“WGM”). Our setup
is a vertical one from knitting, dyeing and finishing of fabrics to the
manufacturing and wholesaling of garments. Both EQK and WGM are
compliant factories manufacturing mainly high end garments. 2009/10
had been a very difficult year for both factories — the increase of
energy costs and yarn prices, the shortage of sewing workers at our
peak delivery season, the seasonality of orders and the continuous
appreciation of Renminbi had all added up to the already difficult
situation. To alleviate the problems, management closed down one of its
manufacturing plants, implemented a complete restructure of its dyeing
and finishing operation and cut down the overhead expenses. Through
these remedial measures, management is confident that the situation at
both factories will improve in the coming year. Our domestic business
in the PRC was also hit by the sudden shortage of sewing workers that

caused late deliveries and hampered their profits.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
Re il - M- oK AW H

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERENWED N

Our small shirt factory — Lavender Garment Limited in Bangladesh
continued to record a slight profit despite the harsh business
environment. This factory’s main role is to oversee all the production at
our partnership factories in Bangladesh and at the same time to provide

contingent support to these factories as well as our customers.

OTHER BUSINESS

Wuxi No. | Cotton Investment Co., Ltd. in which we have a 49%
shareholding is our jointly controlled entity that owns several textiles
related companies in Wuxi, the PRC namely: Wuxi Changxin Textile
Co., Ltd., Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd. and Wuxi Yangtzekiang Textile
Co., Ltd.. The core business of the Wuxi Group is the production
of medium range to high end yarns. The operation had recorded an
increase of profits due to the rise of yarn prices and business, and we

expect the results will improve even further in the coming year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL POSITION

During the period under review, the Group’s operations continued to be

financed by the internal resources and bank borrowings.

As at 31 March 2010, the cash and bank balances of the Group were
approximately $184,770,000 (2009: $116,153,000). As at 3| March 2010,
the Group did not have any short term borrowings (2009: $84,420,000)
and long term borrowings (2009: Nil). The gearing ratio (calculated by
dividing total bank borrowings by total equity) of the Group was 0.10 as
at 31 March 2009. As at 3| March 2010, the Group was in compliance

with the financial covenant of its banking facilities.

The Group adopts a prudent policy to hedge the fluctuation of foreign
exchange rates. As most of the Group’s sales, purchases, cash and
bank balances and bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, United States dollars, Euros, Pounds Sterling or Renminbi, the
Group may enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its
receivables and payables denominated in the above foreign currencies
against the exchange rate fluctuation when the exposure is significant.
As at 3| March 2010, the Group has no outstanding foreign exchange

contracts.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2010, none of the assets of the Group was pledged.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2010, the Group, including its subsidiaries but excluding
its associates and jointly controlled entities, employed approximately of
4,600 employees. Remuneration packages are determined by reference
to employees’ performance and the prevailing salary levels in the market.
In addition, the Group provides year end double pay, provident fund

scheme, medical insurance and training to staff.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
Re il - M- oK AW H

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited
(the “Company”), and its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled

entities (the “Group”) for the year ended 3| March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
garment products and textiles, the provision of processing services and
the rental of properties. The principal activities and other particulars
of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the financial

statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Group during the financial year are set out in note |3

to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 3| March 2010 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in

the financial statements on pages 30 to 157.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 31(c) to the

financial statements. There were no movements during the year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company, before
dividends, for the year ended 31 March 2010 of HK$103,479,000 (2009:
HK$71,877,000) have been transferred to reserves. Other movements in

reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

An interim dividend of HKI cent (2009: HKI cent) per share was
declared and paid on |5 January 2010. The Directors now recommend
the payment of a final dividend of HKé cents (2009: HK9 cents) per
share in respect of the year ended 3| March 2010.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

FIXED ASSETS

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Company disposed of land
and buildings and investment properties for a total consideration of
HK$120,000,000. Details of these disposals and other movements in
fixed assets during the year are set out in notes 6 and |4 to the financial

statements.

BANK LOANS

Particulars of bank loans of the Group and the Company as at 3| March

2010 are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

No interest expenses were capitalised by the Group during the year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$37,000 (2009: HK$664,000).

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the

financial year is as follows:
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Percentage of the

Group’s total

EAREERE
Sales Purchases
e BRI
The largest customer BAEP 15%
Five largest customers in aggregate EuEREFEE 45%
The largest supplier BRAAMER 10%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate A RHERES 31%

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in

these major customers and suppliers.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
Re il - M- oK AW H

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

DIRECTORS

The present Directors of the Company are listed on page 2 to the

annual report.

Pursuant to Article 104 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Mr. Chan Wing Kee and Mr. Chan Wing To
will retire from the Board by rotation and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of

the Company.

On 26 March 2010, Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael was appointed as an

Independent Non-executive Director of the Company.

Pursuant to Article 95 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Sze Cho
Cheung, Michael who was appointed as a Director by the Board after the
last annual general meeting held on || September 2009 will also retire

and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of their
respective independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (“the Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) and the Company considers

the Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who offered themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has entered into
any service contract with the Company or any other member of the
Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory

compensation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ESEREE

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules as set out amongst other related party transactions in note 35
to the financial statements, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of

the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or

at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2010, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“the Model Code”) and which were required to be entered

in the register kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO

were as follows:
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Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each

BREEBEISOTZETERMEE

Personal Family Corporate Other

interests interests interests interests
Name of Director EENR AR Rk A AR HithfEzs
Chan Sui Kau R 3 BR 4,324,696 3,999,354 5,611,230 ()
Chan Wing Fui, Peter PRk ZE 486,102 8,367,130 - (i) & (ii)
Chan Wing Kee R K A 8,589,624 208,356 - (i) & (ii) & (iii)
Chan Wing To BR 7K 8 9,762,054 - - (i) & (ii) & (iii)
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel B ok 22 6,089,244 250,000 3,293,080 (i) & (ii)
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley 150 = 4,369,816 24,000 - (i) & (ii)
Chan Suk Man 21RO 3,355,442 - - (i) & (ii) & (iii)
So Ying Woon, Alan Bk fEE 12,000 - - -
Leung Hok Lim RER - - - -
Wong Lam B - - - -
Lin Keping Mz F - - - -
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael iR ER 3 - - - -
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
Re il - M- oK AW H

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

(a) (continued)

Notes:

(i) 48,032,240 shares of the Company were held by Chan Family
Investment Corporation Ltd. (which is owned by Messrs Chan Sui
Kau, Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing To and Chan
Wing Sun, Samuel, Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley and Madam Chan

Suk Man and other members of the Chan Family) and its subsidiaries.

(ii) 1,577,388 shares of the Company were held by Hearty Development
Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan Wing Fui, Peter,
Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing To, Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, Madam
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley, Madam Chan Suk Man and other members of
the Chan Family.

(iii) 2,383,500 shares of the Company were held by Super Team
International Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan Wing
Kee, Chan Wing To, Madam Chan Suk Man and other members of the
Chan family.

(b) Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, none of the
Directors or their associates, had, under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO, nor were they taken to or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO, any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) or any interests which are required to be entered into the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
or any interests which are required to be notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors are not aware of any person who
was, directly or indirectly, interested or had short position in the shares
or underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO or, was directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more
of the nominal value of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of the Company or any options in

respect of such capital as at 31 March 2010.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 23 September 2004, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) which will remain in force until 22
September 2014. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant options to directors and employees of the Group
and other eligible participants to subscribe for shares in the Company,
provided that the total number of shares in the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
does not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, which was 14,024,579 shares.
On |9 September 2006, it was approved in the Annual General Meeting
that the maximum number of options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme was increased to 21,036,868 shares, representing 10% of

the total number of ordinary shares in issue on that day.

No options were granted under the Share Option Scheme during the

year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31 March
2010.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of connected transactions under Chapter |4A of the Listing

Rules are set out amongst other related party transactions in note 35

to the financial statements.

In the opinion of the Independent Non-

executive Directors, these transactions were entered into by the Group:

@)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

in the ordinary and usual course of its business;

conducted either on normal commercial terms (which expression
will be applied by reference to transactions of a similar nature
and to be made by similar entities) or where there is no available
comparison, on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the

independent shareholders of the Company are concerned;

in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing the

transactions; and

in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group, where

applicable.

The auditors of the Company also confirmed that the continuing

connected transactions set out in note 35 of the financial statements:

had been approved by the Board;

were in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

had been entered into in accordance with the terms of the

agreements relating to these transactions; and

the aggregate consideration received or paid in respect of the
continuing connected transactions during the year ended 3l
March 2010 had not exceeded the cap disclosed in the respective

announcement and/or circular.

There are no other connected transactions which are required to be

disclosed in this report in accordance with the requirements of Chapter
I4A of the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in note

28 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

To comply with the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix |4
to the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange, the Company has set up an
audit committee (the “Committee”) with written terms of reference,
for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision on the financial
reporting process and internal control of the Group. The Committee

comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 159 and 160 of the annual

report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report,
there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s

issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company.

By Order of the Board
Chan Sui Kau

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 July 2010
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREABE

Pursuant to Appendix 23 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Yangtzekiang
Garment Limited (the “Company”) presents this Corporate Governance

Report for the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board firmly believes that corporate governance is essential to the
success of the Company and has adopted various measures to ensure its
strict compliance with relevant regulatory requirements, a high level of
transparency in corporate governance and an excellent performance in

operation.

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 31 March 2010
with the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, except that the non-executive directors of the Company were
not appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with Articles 95 and 104 of the Company’s articles of

association

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a Securities Dealing Code regarding
director’s securities transactions on terms no less exacting than required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. All Directors have confirmed, upon specific
enquiry by the Company, that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and its Securities Dealing Code

throughout the year under review.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREABE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The major responsibilities of the Board include formulation of strategic
plans, adoption of corporate strategies, assessment of investment
projects, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operating and financial
performance, assessment and management of risk to which the Group is

exposed.

The Board currently comprises eight Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Directors during the year

ended 3| March 2010 and upto the date of this Annual Report were:

Executive Directors
Chan Sui Kau

Chan Wing Fui, Peter
Chan Wing Kee

Chan Wing To

Chan Suk Man

Chan Wing Sun, Samuel
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley
So Ying Woon, Alan

Independent Non-executive Directors

Leung Hok Lim

Lin Keping

Sze Cho Cheung, Michael (appointed on 26 March 2010)
Wong Lam (resigned on 6 May 2010)

The Company has appointed a sufficient number of Independent Non-
executive Directors with suitable professional qualifications, such as
expertise in accounting and financial management, in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of

his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREABE

The Board held four meetings during the year. The attendance record of

the individual Directors is as follows:

ESENFRETTEORER 8ES2
HFE ST

Meetings attended/Held

Directors E=E HE " BITEBRE
Chan Sui Kau R B BR 4/4
Chan Wing Fui, Peter Rk ZE 4/4
Chan Wing Kee BR 7k A 4/4
Chan Wing To BeR 7K OE 4/4
Chan Suk Man 2| iR 3L 4/4
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel PR 7k 22 4/4
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley AR 4/4
So Ying Woon, Alan B fEIE 4/4
Leung Hok Lim REE 4/4
Lin Keping M= F 4/4
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael iR ER <3

(appointed on 26 March 2010) (R=Z-ZF=ZA=-+BEZE) 1/4
Wong Lam (resigned on 6 May 2010) EFRN-ZE-—ZFHANBEEE) 4/4
CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR ITRRESHKE

The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director of
the Company are separated, with a clear division of responsibilities.
The Chairman of the Board is responsible for formulating corporate
strategies and overall business development planning. The Managing
Director’s duty is to oversee the execution of daily business activities.
The division of responsibilities at the board level is to ensure a balance

of power and authority.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREABE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
Current members of the Audit Committee are three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Lin Keping and Mr.
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael. Mr. Leung Hok Lim is the chairman of the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee held two meetings during the

year ended 3| March 2010. The attendance record is set out below:
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Meetings attended/Held

Directors =S HE S BITEBRRE
Leung Hok Lim RER 2/2
Lin Keping M= 22
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael HE1E

(appointed on 26 March 2010) (R=ZZE-—ZEF=A=+ HEZMD N/A
Wong Lam (resigned on 6 May 2010) IFRN=-ZE-ZEFHABEIME) 2/2

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for monitoring the integrity
of the Company’s financial statements, reviewing the Company’s internal
control system and its execution through the review of the work
undertaken by the internal and external auditors, evaluating financial
information and related disclosure, reviewing connected transactions and
considering the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and

their training programmes and budget.

The Group’s audited financial statements, internal control system and
connected transactions for the year ended 31 March 2010 have been

reviewed by the Audit Committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The current members of the Remuneration Committee consists of
two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter (chairman
of the remuneration committee) and Mr. Chan Wing Kee, and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim,
Mr. Lin Keping and Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael. The Company had
formulated written terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee

in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREABE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies and
in overseeing remuneration packages of the Directors. It takes into
consideration factors such as salaries and compensation packages paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors. It also takes into account whether the emoluments
offered are appropriate to the duties and performance of the respective
individuals concerned and whether such emoluments are competitive and

sufficiently attractive to retain such individuals.

The Remuneration Committee convened one meeting during the year

ended 31 March 2010. The attendance record is set out below:

WEZESRERRAFIEMEBRNER
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T
Meetings attended/Held
Directors = HEBITEBRE
Chan Wing Fui, Peter BRoKZE 171
Chan Wing Kee B K 2 1/1
Leung Hok Lim RER 171
Lin Keping M 171
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael HEiE
(appointed on 26 March 2010) (R=ZB-ZF=ZA=+BEZE) N/A
Wong Lam (resigned on 6 May 2010) EFRR-Z-ZSFRASAEMD) 11
NOMINATION COMMITTEE BEEES

The Company has not established a Nomination Committee. To maintain
high quality of the Board with a balance of skills and experience, the
Board will identify individuals suitably qualified to become directors
when necessary. In evaluating whether an appointee is suitable to act
as a director, the Board will consider the experience, qualification and
other relevant factors. During the year, Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 26 March 2010. Subsequently, Mr. Wong Lam
resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
with effect from 6 May 2010.

ARABAYBRUREEZEG RERES
SEASHEREZMFERORER E28
BEFERNREERZATHEES -
ETEE - BHREALRTEEGEES
EEXR EFEEZTRAPREBALZE
5 BERAMABEE - RAFR - k8
HALEBZAERFRABILFHNITES
H-Z-ZF=A-t ABEN - BE& -
IREERERARABLFATES  H
“E-ZEFRARBEEN-

ANNUAL REPORT 09/10 #EF R



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREABE

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
financial statements for each financial period with a view to ensuring
such financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The
Company’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with all
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently; and that judgments and

estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

The Directors are also responsible for reviewing the adequacy of staffing

of the financial reporting functions.

The reporting responsibilities of KPMG, the Company’s auditors, are
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 28 to 29 of this

Annual Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Total auditors’ remuneration in relation to statutory audit work of the
Group amounted to HK$1,644,000 (2009: HK$1,646,000), of which a
sum of HK$1,410,000 (2009: HK$1,496,000) was paid or payable to the
Group’s principal auditors, KPMG.

The fees paid to KPMG for services rendered are set out as below:
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FET FET

Statutory audit EEEX 1,410 1,496
Non-audit services FERIHE 211 654
Total 4 zE 1,621 2,150
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining an adequate
and sound internal control system and through the Audit Committee
and an external firm of qualified accountants to provide internal audit
services (“Internal Auditors”), conducts reviews on the effectiveness of
these systems at least annually, covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk management
functions. The process used in reviewing the effectiveness of these
internal control systems includes discussion with management on risk
areas identified by management. The purpose of the Company’s internal
control is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks
of failure in operational systems so that the Company’s objectives can be

achieved.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

Although there was no in-house internal audit set up during the year,
the Company engaged the Internal Auditors to review specific areas
of concern identified by management and the Audit Committee. The
Internal Auditors performed a review of the effectiveness of the system
of internal control of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 so
as to furnish some degree of comfort to the Audit Committee and the
Board on the reliability and integrity of the system and control process.
The results of the internal control review were submitted to the Audit
Committee for consideration. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
results of the internal control review and is satisfied that the existing

system of internal controls is effective and adequate.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EEREEBAE

DIRECTORS

Chan Sui Kau, GBM, GBS, |P

Aged 85, Dr. Chan is the founder of our Group. He established the
Company in 1949 and is the Executive Chairman of the Company and
the Honorary Chairman of YGM Trading Ltd. Having been a Justices of
the Peace since 1983, Dr. Chan was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star in
2002 and six years later in 2008 he was awarded the Grand Bauhinia
Medal. Dr. Chan used to serve as a member of the 8th & 9th term of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee until he reached
the retirement age. Dr. Chan is also an Honorary Citizen of Dongguan,

Foshan, Guangzhou and Wuxi (Jiangsu).

Dr. Chan received an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Business
Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2001;
an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Social Sciences from City University
of Hong Kong in 2007 and in the same year an Honorary University
Fellowship from The University of Hong Kong. Then in 2008 Dr. Chan
received another two honorary university conferments: one was an
Honorary University Fellowship from Hong Kong Baptist University and
the other one was an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Social Sciences from

The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology.

Dr. Chan is the former Chairman of the Clothing Industry Training
Authority (1986); former Chairman of the Textile Council of Hong Kong
(1988-1994) and presently its Honorary Chairman; former President
of Federation of Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers (1977-1988) and
currently its Life Honorary President; Honorary President of Hong Kong
Woollen & Synthetic Knitting Manufacturers’ Association since 1980 and
former member of Textile Advisory Board of Hong Kong (1971-1987) as
well as the Hong Kong Labour Advisory Board (1985-1995).
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Chan Wing Fui, Peter, MA

Aged 64, Mr. Chan received a Master’s degree in Administrative Science
from Yale University, USA in 1969 and joined the Group in the same
year. He was appointed as Director and Managing Director of the
Company in 1971 and 1980 respectively and Vice Chairman of the board
of directors of the Group and YGM Trading Ltd in 1987. He has been
the Chairman of the board of directors of YGM Trading Limited since
May 2010. Mr Chan has been actively involved in garment manufacturing
and marketing in the Far East and the USA for over 30 years. He is the
son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the brother of Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel
and Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.

Chan Wing Kee, GBS, OBE, JP

Aged 63, Mr. Chan received a Bachelor’s degree in Industrial Engineering
in 1970. He joined the Group in 1970 as Production Manager and later
became Sales Manager. He was appointed Director in 1977 and Managing
Director in 1987. He is also a Director of YGM Trading Limited;
Independent Non-executive Director of China Travel International
Investment Hong Kong Limited and China Construction Bank (Asia)
Corporation Limited. Mr. Chan was the Independent Non-Executive
Director of Times Ltd from June 2007 to January 2010. Mr. Chan has
participated in many textile negotiations with the USA and Europe
for Hong Kong and Macau. He is a Standing Committee Member of
The 10th and Ilth of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference; Deputy of the 8th & 9th National People’s Congress of
China; Member of Commission on Strategic Development of Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region; Ex-member of Economic Council of
Macau Special Administrative Region; Ex-member of the Textile Advisory
Board; Ex-Committee Member of the Preparatory Committee for Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region and Ex-Advisor of Hong Kong
Affairs. He is the brother of Mr. Chan Wing To and Ms. Chan Suk Man.

Chan Wing To, PhD

Aged 59, Mr. Chan joined YGM Singapore in 1978. He was appointed
Director of the Group in 1983 and YGM Trading Ltd in 1987. He is the
brother of Mr. Chan Wing Kee and Ms. Chan Suk Man.

Chan Suk Man, Msc

Aged 62, Ms. Chan received Master of Science Degrees from the
University of Windsor, Canada in 1973 and Case Western Reserve
University USA in 1975. Madam Chan joined the Group in 1976 and was
appointed as Director in 1993. She is the sister of Mr. Chan Wing Kee
and Mr. Chan Wing To.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EEREEBAE

Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, FCA

Aged 62, Mr. Chan received a Bachelor’s degree from University of
Manchester, the United Kingdom in 1970 and qualified as a Chartered
Accountant in 1973. He was the Company Secretary of the Group
from 1974 to 1988 and has been a Director since 1977. Mr. Chan was
appointed as the Managing Director of YGM Trading Limited from 1987
to 2006 and the Chief Executive Officer of YGM Trading Limited from
2006 to 2010. He was appointed as the Vice Chairman of the board
of directors of YGM Trading Limited since May 2010. He has been
appointed as the Chairman of Hang Ten Group Holdings Limited since
2003 and also acts as the Chief Executive Officer since March 2010. He
is the son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the brother of Mr. Chan Wing Fui,
Peter and Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.

Chan Suk Ling, Shirley

Madam Chan has been the Chief Executive Officer of the YGM Trading
Group since 2010. She joined the Group in 1973, was appointed
Director of the Group in 1983 and Deputy Managing Director of YGM
Trading Ltd in 1987. Madam Chan was the Managing Director of YGM
Trading Group from 2006 to 2010. She has extensive experience of
management in the garment retail and wholesale business. Madam Chan
is a Member of the Textiles Advisory Board of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, a Member of the Hong Kong-France Business
Partnership Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council,
Vice President of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong
Kong, Chairman of the Hong Kong Brand Development Council, a
Member of the DesignSmart Initiative Assessment Panel, a Member of
the Board of Directors of the Hong Kong Tourism Board, a Member of
Board of Directors of Ocean Park Corporation, a Committee Member
of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, Vice President of the Guangdong Association
of Enterprises with Foreign Investment and a Member of the Council of
City University of Hong Kong. She received a Bachelor’s degree from
Nottingham Trent University, the United Kingdom in 1973. Madam
Chan, aged 59, is the daughter of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the sister of Mr.
Chan Wing Fui, Peter and Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EEREEBAE

So Ying Woon, Alan

Aged 60, Mr. So received a Bachelor’s degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1974. Mr. So joined the Group in 1974 and
was promoted to the position of Sales Manager in 1976. He has been
the General Manager since 1993. Mr. So was appointed as Executive

Director of the Company on 29 November 2005.

Leung Hok Lim, FCPA(Aust.), CPA(Macau), FCPA(Practising)

Aged 75, Mr. Leung was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in 1993. He is the founder and senior partner
of PKF, Accountants & Business Advisers. Mr. Leung is an Independent
Non-executive Director of YGM Trading Limited, a Non-executive
Director of Beijing Hong Kong Exchange of Personnel Centre Limited
and the Independent Non-executive Director of a number of listed

companies.

Lin Keping

Aged 71, Mr. Lin was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in 2004. Mr. Lin is an engineer, graduated
from Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications in 1963. He
is a member of the Eighth National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference and an executive member of the
Eighth All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce. He has served in
postal and telecommunication research institutes, the Ministry of Posts
and Telecommunications and other organisations for years, and was an
executive vice president of China Minsheng Bank Corp. Ltd. He is an

Independent Non-executive Director of YGM Trading Limited.

Sze Cho Cheung, Michael

Aged 65, Mr. Sze was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in March 2010. He was a former executive
director of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, a position
he held for eight years prior to his retirement on | May 2004. Before
that, he worked for 25 years in various capacities in the Hong Kong
Government. He is also an Independent Non-executive Directors of
Swire Pacific Limited and YGM Trading Limited. Mr. Sze resigned as
a non-executive director of Lee Kum Kee Co., Ltd. in June 2010 and

currently acts as a consultant to the board of Lee Kum Kee Co., Ltd.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EEREEBAE

MANAGEMENT

Lau Shing Choy

Aged 62, Mr. Lau received a Bachelor’s degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1969, and a Doctor of Philosophy Degree
from Case Western Reserve University, USA in 1978. Mr. Lau joined
the Group in 1978 to develop the China business. He is the Director of

Hong Kong Knitters Limited. He is the husband of Ms. Chan Suk Man.

Leung Ming Wai, Alan

Aged 52, Mr. Leung is the General Manager of Sales Department and
obtained the diploma in Management Studies at Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and Master Degree in Business Administration at University of

Macau. He joined the Company as Sales Manager in 1986.

Chui Wai Ha, Catherine, MBA

Aged 48, Ms. Chui is the General Sales Manager. Ms. Chui joined the
Group in 1994, and has over 20 years’ managerial experience in fashion
business. She was awarded Master of Business Administration (Fashion

Business) by the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2004.

Hui Sau Ling

Aged 44, Ms. Hui was appointed as Financial Controller and Company
Secretary of the Company in 2000. Ms. Hui is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She is

responsible for accounting and company secretarial matters.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
Re il - M- oK AW H

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYZHE RS

cblic

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yangtzekiang
Garment Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 30 to |57, which
comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31
March 2010, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that

are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 14| of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or

accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYZHE RS

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of

the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

16 July 2010
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
Re il - M- oK AW H

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEEER

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RHILFE (L&)

2010 2009
—2-%F -BEhE
Note $°000 $°000
HaE Fr T
Turnover BXE 3&13 1,310,042 1,625,529
Cost of sales SHE R A (1,096,120) (1,323,270)
Gross profit EF 213,922 302,259
Other revenue HA e A 4,653 7,368
Other net income/(loss) Hihz, (BER) FH8E 11,115 (9.872)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (101,954) (128,395)
Administrative expenses THEAR (84,041) (91,678)
Other operating expenses HtEE &M (22,992) (31,013)
Profit from operations KEEA 20,703 48,669
Finance costs & A AR 5(a) (5,634) (9,238)
Share of profits less losses of FE R EEE D BDR R E 8
associates 19(b) 1,306 1,151
Share of profits less losses of e gD maEFREE
jointly controlled entities 20 34,237 38,193
Gain on disposal of associate HERE QA E 19(c) - 4,684
Impairment losses on interest in BENRERRER
associate and dividend receivable BEARREZRERIE
from associate 19(d) (7,914) -
Impairment loss on fixed assets EEEERERE 14(f) (21,014) -
Gain on disposals of land and buildings HE T RIEFRIEE
and investment properties L ELE 6 81,133 -
Net valuation gains/(losses) on BEWMELERSE(EB)
investment properties FEE 14(a) 20,915 (7,845)
Profit before taxation Bk B A2 R 5 123,732 75,614
Income tax P& 7(a) (20,086) (3,447)
Profit for the year AEERF 103,646 72,167
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mERESER

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T-TE=A=T-ALTE LUETH)

2010 2009
—2-8F -TEAF
Note $°000 $°000
Hrat Fr Fr
Attributable to: ERERN
Equity shareholders of the Company AARRERFEA 10 103,479 71,877
Minority interests LPERREER 167 290
Profit for the year REEBF 103,646 72,167
Earnings per share EREF
Basic and diluted BEARAREE 12 $0.49 $0.34
The notes on pages 40 to 157 form part of these financial statements. FAEZISTEHHMEB AR ERRK 22—

e

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company EBAARARREZE ANREFEBE LK
attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 31(b). &F31(b) °
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kL R K A W

A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e 2mElaER

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RHILFE (L&)

2010 2009
—%2-%F —TThE
Note $°000 $°000
HaE F Fr
Profit for the year rEEmR 103,646 72,167
Other comprehensive income AEEHMDEKE
for the year (after (BEDRER)
reclassification adjustments) I
Exchange differences: N ER
— translation of financial statements —BREFBRIINE DR
of subsidiaries outside MBMERMEEZ
Hong Kong N ZERE 413 5,011
— share of associates’ and jointly —EEBEARREE AR
controlled entities” exchange & 5
reserves 1,694 9,129
— accumulated exchange differences - RFEREEREE
in respect of an associate BENRRERE
transferred to the consolidated mEeBRk
income statement on disposal - (310)
2,107 13,830
Available-for-sale securities: At ERERS
net movement in the investment RESHERBGEHFE
revaluation reserve 101 (358)
2,208 13,472
Total comprehensive income AFEETERBEARE
for the year 105,854 85,639
Attributable to: ERBER:
Equity shareholders of the Company ARERERFE A 105,687 85,349
Minority interests DERRER 167 290
Total comprehensive income FEETHRZASE
for the year 105,854 85,639

The notes on pages 40 to 157 form part of these financial statements.

FAEZISTENHEBART KRR = — I
e
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mEEERMEXR

At 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZ—TFE=A=+—8H WExs)

2010 2009
—g-%f —EERE
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
et Fr Fr FT FT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets BEEE 14(a)
Investment properties REW%E 83,711 93,028
Other property, plant and Hit% - BE
equipment REE 104,529 154,006
Interest in leasehold land BERKEHREZ
held for own-use under BERESE L
operating lease 1,747 2,103
189,987 249,137
Construction in progress EEIR 15 - 609
Intangible assets BILEE 16 1,569 2,874
Goodwill mE 17 - -
Interest in associate BeE AR 19 - 6,586
Interests in jointly controlled EERRER
entities 20 513,133 477,224
Other financial assets HivemERE 21 5,820 5,986
Dividend receivable from a jointly EBlH&&ERATRE
controlled entity 23 - 28,678
Deferred tax assets BEEFREHEE 29(b) 17,301 7,765
727,810 778,859
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 90,416 147,698
Trade and other receivables FE UK BR R R H At FE U 3K 23 197,939 175,813
Current tax recoverable AR A IR 29(a) 2,311 242
Pledged deposits EHIRITER 24 - 9,070
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 25 184,770 116,153
475,436 448,976
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
Re il - M- oK AW H

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mEEERMEXR

At 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZ—TFE=A=+—8H WExs)

2010 2009
—s-%% —EEAE
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
et Fr Fr F Fr
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables FE A9 BR R R Ll FE AT R 26 164,821 201,224
Bank loans RITER 27 - 84,420
Current tax payable FEfF A EA R 1B 29(a) 17,131 8,805
181,952 294,449
Net current assets REEEZEE 293,484 154,527
Total assets less current EERERARBAE
liabilities 1,021,294 933,386
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Provision for long service payments R HIRE & %E 30 24,754 33,335
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFTBHERE 29(b) 26,788 15,432
51,542 48,767
NET ASSETS EEFE 969,752 884,619
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXK#EE
Share capital &N 31(c) 105,184 105,184
Reserves fhE 863,341 778,375
Total equity attributable to ERBRAARRE
equity shareholders of RHEAEZARE
the Company 968,525 883,559
Minority interests LR RER 1,227 1,060
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 969,752 884,619

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on EEEER-Z-ZHELA+AAKER

16 July 2010. REBRM LSRR -

Chan Sui Kau Chan Wing Kee BR 3% 2R R K AR

Chairman Managing Director EE EEHESE

The notes on pages 40 to |57 form part of these financial statements. FABEZISTENMEB R RKRZ —B
7 e
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

R W R A5 B A 49
7\ T %
ARAE S X
At 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RoZZE—2F=A=1+—8 (L&)
2010 2009
—z-2fF —FEAE
Note $’000 $’000 $°000 $°000
Kt Fr Fr Fr Fr
Non-current assets kRBEE
Fixed assets EE&EE 14(b)
Investment properties REYE 106,970 104,164
Other property, plant and Hithz - BE
equipment kBB 26,578 38,441
133,548 142,605
Intangible assets mEEE 6 1,569 2,384
Interests in subsidiaries P EENGIR £ 18 91,884 135,080
Interests in jointly controlled BELNRER
entities 20 230,818 230,818
Other financial assets HhsmEaE 21 5,820 5,986
463,639 516,873
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 23,528 38,846
Trade and other receivables FE U BR TR % EL i FE UK X 23 211,797 207,253
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBREEEY 25 87,179 38,945
322,504 285,044
Current liabilities FEBEE
Trade and other payables FE A< BR 3% % HL At FE A 3K 26 76,223 117,168
Bank loans RITER 27 - 74,669
Current tax payable Bt AR EAT 1 29(a) 16,693 2,701
92,916 194,538
Net current assets REBEEFE 229,588 90,506
Total assets less current EEABERABER
liabilities 693,227 607,379
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
AEEERMER

At 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R=B—FF=A=1—8 (WETH)

2010 2009
—E—EfF —ZZhEF
Note $°000 $°000 $000 $000
et Fr Fr FrT FrT
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Provision for long service RERBELEH
payments 30 2,689 4,459
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRESHERE 29(b) 21,124 19,091
23,813 23,550
NET ASSETS EERE 669,414 583,829
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRFE 31(a)
Share capital [N 105,184 105,184
Reserves Ee] 564,230 478,645
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 669,414 583,829

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on EEeoRN - E—EF+LtHA+BZER

16 July 2010. BERM LIRS -

Chan Sui Kau Chan Wing Kee &R B BR FR 7K 12

Chairman Managing Director i EE

The notes on pages 40 to 157 form part of these financial statements. FHEZEISTENMEB AT B RK 22—
1D o
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
¥ s ik s s B e s Bt < R - o]

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEmB R

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T-TE=A=T-ALTE LUETH)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ERENEQARBEAA
Land and
Capital Goodwill  Investment  buildings
Share Share redemption  Exchange arisingon revaluation revaluation Other  Retained Minority Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve consolidation reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
GREEA THRET

BA BEEE BAREER  EANR E:z8% AREGHR  BUBR  RREE  RERA ME ONRREE  RutE
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Woom m B F B B B B B F

(Nete 31))~ (Note 21(d) (Note 31(d) (Note 31l (Note 31(d) ~ (Note 31(d))
(W) (i) (g (i) (Bsigm) (FEap)
Balanceat | April 2008 R-FZNE
BA-RZ&8 105,184 102,753 L] 66,099 (#2,174) 400 20309 1136 577,891 838,180 mn 838,950
Changes in equity for EREERD:
the year:
Dividends approved in respect ~ AE A EER
of te previous year L-EENRE 3P - - - - - - - - (37866)  (3786¢) - (37.866)
Dividends declared in respect ~ AEEEERRE
of the current year 31(b)(i) - - - - - - - - (2104 (2104 - (2,104
Total comprehensive income ~~ FR2 ANRLEE
for the year - - - 13830 - (358) - - 11877 85,349 29 85,639
Balance at 3| March 2009~ W=FFA%
and | April 2009 =A=t-H
R-RENE
mA-Rz&8 105,184 102753 4l 19929 (42,174) L)) 20,309 123 609,799 883,559 1,060 884,619
Changes in equity for FRERSEE:
the year:
Dividends approved in respect ~ ABAKERH
of the previous year L-EEHRE 31 (b)) - - - - - - - - (18,933) (18,933) - (18933)
Disposal of investment HENEERRLY
properties previously RERzRENE
transferred from land
and buildings - - - - - - (3,820) - 3820 - - -
Reversal of deferred tax on HENGERELH
disposal of investment Rz RENE
properties previously FELZBEAER
transferred from land BE
and buidings b)) - - - - - - 36 - - 36 - 36
Dividends declared in respect ~ FEEEERRE
of the current year 31(b)(i) - - - - - - - - (2,104 (0104 - (2104
Total comprehensive income ~ ERZANEEE
for the year - - - 2107 - 101 - - 103479 105,687 167 105,854
Balance at 3| March 2010  R-%-3%
SRZt-BekR 105,184 102,753 481 82,036 (42,174) 143 16,805 1,236 696,061 968,525 1,27 969,752
The notes on pages 40 to |57 form part of these financial statements. FABEZISTENM B AR ERRK 2 — 30
7 o
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kL R K A W

A

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RHILFE (L&)

2010 2009
—2-%8% C—TThE
Note $°000 $°000
HaE Fr F
Operating activities KRETH
Cash generated from operations REXBAERE 25(b) 61,644 94,543
Tax paid 2B E
— Hong Kong Profits Tax paid —ENEBRER (11,347) (11,090)
— Tax paid outside Hong Kong - BB BUINIEIE @(319) (1,585)
Net cash generated from RETHAENRESER
operating activities 49,978 81,868
Investing activities KRETE
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BEEEEEMNN (3,534) (15,067)
Proceeds from disposals of land and HELTHREFREE
buildings and investment properties YEFRBRIE 120,000 -
Proceeds from disposals of plant and HERERKERHM
machinery and other fixed assets EEEEMRBRIEA 385 539
Payment for construction in progress ERIRMER (621) (2,340)
Interest received 2K F 2 1,041 1,192
Dividend received from associate EWEE NI ZRE 1,549 1,446
Dividends received from unlisted equity DU LT REESH 2
securities KE 422 415
New loans to suppliers HIEHERER - (2,000)
Receipt of loans receivable ”Q@L@L&E%’\ 821 5,168
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits K17 FE 4 (18 40) 9,070 (9,070)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REFEFE, (FTA)
investing activities WREFH 129,133 (19,717)

ANNUAL REPORT 09/10 #EF R



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kL R/ K A5 R A H
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
= . —
RERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE_ZT-ZSF=-A=T—HLLEE (LOETH)
2010 2009
—B-BF “EERAF
Note $°000 $°000
HaE Fr T
Financing activities METE
Repayment of bank loans BEEIRITER (124,420) (572,200)
Proceeds from new bank loans FIBRITERMBRE 40,000 578,186
Interest paid 2FE (5,634) (9,238)
Dividends paid 2IRRE (21,037) (39,970)
Net cash used in financing MEETBHANRSFE
activities (111,091) (43,222)
Net increase in cash and cash ReRESEEYEM
equivalents FH8 68,020 18,929
Cash and cash equivalents at RNAE—HBZzHRER
I April ReEEEY 116,153 96,838
Effect of foreign exchange rates SMEHBBEH2HE
changes 597 386
Cash and cash equivalents at R=A=+—-82
31 March REeREAELEEY 25(a) 184,770 116,153

The notes on pages 40 to 157 form part of these financial statements.

F40EZISTENNEB AT KRE 2 — 3
2 o
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
Re il - M- oK AW H

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 75 ¥ 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out

below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected

in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2010 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s

interests in associate and jointly controlled entities.

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s subsidiaries, associate and jointly controlled entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s

functional and presentation currency.

. EESFHEE

(2)

(b)

BFEH
FUMBBRRERRAEERAZE
BMBHREED ([EBMBERS
ERD(HDEBEHEAAE (B
BERMAE) BAGZMEER
ZEREBMBHRELER - BB
SRR (THRBSFTER ) MR
B BELARSETRUNEBL
ARBIZRE 2GR FHE -
MBBRTAEEBHERS M
ERAREZ LTRAZBEBAK
BRE -UTATEERAZE
EEBERBE -

EREHMASCEMSE TH
BB 2B BMBREER
YRAEBRADE ZANETH
BERXERSLTHERRR - B
ARERLEHBRAEERIT
RBESTTHBAER ZETH
REBMRRNZEPBHRR
BH - BIRHEE2

S S L L
HE-T-TF=A=+-AL
FENGAVBERR  BEAD
AREMEAT (HBBIAE
B RASERBEAARAE
AR -

FEEMBAR BEQARSE
ENREAZUBRRABEZ
HENERAZEREECETE
RERB2EBTE (HEE
W)  GEMBRRAKRDIH
WEEERIBITES -
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kL R K FH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

O)

(continued)
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except as set

out in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in

note 37.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights

that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

A

N

a1

. ETESBER(F

(b) MBBRNEREE (H)

()

FHMBHRERERBEELRAEE
W METHIE BRI ER
BRop

BERUMBHREENFEROIB
ERNTEEEERAERYKE
LA E - AT RER ZF
I A REBREEETEE
MNER LURFFEHK2EE -8
B BARIHNEE - EER
BENRESHENRREREL
REMBREIG - HSFEERE
BLERMEMBERTRAS
R H M E R AT o BIRA
RAGEEMFTHBEEZR -

Et RAABEBRR SIS E WML -
BTN RBNRREEE
B AAENTEEGITREN
EMmRA - MRZESF AN
EREEZHMMUENEE - B
FENTEEENMURTER

N
o

FHEEBRERMKREER
NAEHMEEHBERREE

HENHE URMGTHTEE
HEZETERFEZARADT &
HIPA B EE37 ©

MEBLARRDBRRER
MEARREZAEEEHNE
B -EfXEEARERE-BEZ
MBEREEHFR  UEBZERE
ZEBEE AEBEEREZE
BE AV B RE o TERT AL 4Z MBI RERT -
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

53

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iL /K A WA 6

BF 75 ¥ 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RHILFE (L&)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(c) Subsidiaries and minority interests (continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions, and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent

that there is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned
by the Company, whether directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. Minority interests
are presented in the consolidated balance sheet within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company. Minority interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between minority

interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority
interests in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess and any
further losses attributable to the minority, are charged against
the Group’s interest except to the extent that the minority
has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently
reports profits, the Group’s interest is allocated all such
profits until the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed

by the Group has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary

is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note |(k)).

TESTBOR (&

(c) MEBLARARDBRRER (&)

RMBLARRE  HERERMX
ZHBEEEZHKLEERAAN
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BERKZHEE - KERPX
SIEENAZRERNIRES
EEABBWHEER - EIKHERE
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kLR K A B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RHILFE (L&)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(d) Associates and jointly controlled entities

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and

operating policy decisions.

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a
contractual arrangement between the Group or the Company
and other parties, where the contractual arrangement
establishes that the Group or the Company and one or more
of the other parties share joint control over the economic

activity of the entity.

An investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity
is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method and is initially recorded at cost and
adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see notes I(e) and (k)). The
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated income statement, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of loss exceeds its interest in
the associate or the jointly controlled entity, the Group’s
interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses
is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in

the associate or the jointly controlled entity.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
Re il - M- oK AW H

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 75 ¥ 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-TF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(d)

(e)

Associates and jointly controlled entities (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and jointly controlled
entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they

are recognised immediately in the profit or loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in associates and
jointly controlled entities are stated at cost less impairment

losses (see note |(k)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate or a jointly
controlled entity over the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and

contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated
to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the

combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

1 (K))-

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination or an
investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity is

recognised immediately in the profit or loss.

On disposal of a cash generating unit, an associate or a jointly
controlled entity during the year, any attributable amount of
purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit

or loss on disposal.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kL R K FH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-TF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(e) Goodwill (continued)

®

Goodwill, which arose prior to | January 2001, which
had previously been taken directly to reserves will not be
recognised in the profit or loss on disposal or impairment of
the acquired business, or under any other circumstances. On
disposal of the acquired business, the related goodwill will be

transferred to retained profits.

Other investments in equity securities
The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in equity securities other than investments in subsidiaries,

associates and jointly controlled entities, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are recognised in the balance sheet at

cost less impairment losses (see note |(k)).

Investments in other securities are classified as available-for-
sale securities. At each balance sheet date, the fair value is
remeasured with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the fair value reserve. When these investments are
derecognised or impaired (see note |(k)), the cumulative gain

or loss is reclassified from equity to the profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they

expire.

B

. EESFHEE(HE)

(e) BE(E)

()

RoSE—F-A—RAELY
BEEHAGHBNRE 5
B S5 45 o 5 o 1 SR
FERBHABRE - RHEEH
AR TEES - MBI R R
AR RT o

HRERERE
FEERADARKRERS (R
Bﬂ‘%i\\ﬁj N Hﬁ%i\\a&é%@a

ZRERN) 2REBENT -

RRERSRE - MARERFR
TEPRETSRE HOVE
EFTEATENE  BIZSE
REGUHARBKREREYR
REESEBEX (BRAMEIK) °

HitEFHZREN D BEHAHHE
BH -MATEEERE-HH
REEEHTE  MEENEMIE
mHEAEMEEWRERE B RF
YR 3R A B9 D B (E 18 IR
R R EREWK BRI
B (ZHEMEI() » EREER
BEABRIANRITRENERRS

EAEEREHEBA HERE
FRECIMER  FERES
WD BUEHR -

ANNUAL REPORT 09/10 EE&F R



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
Re il - M- oK AW H

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 75 ¥ 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-TF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(g) Fixed assets

(i)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note I(j)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed and developed for future use as investment

properties.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet
at fair value unless they are still in the course of
construction at the balance sheet date and their fair
value cannot be reliably determined at that time. Any
gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in the profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in

note |(t)(iii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for
as an investment property on a property-by-property
basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for
as if it were held under a finance lease, and the same
accounting policies are applied to other investment

properties leased under finance leases.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-TF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(g) Fixed assets (continued)

(i)

Other property, plant and equipment
The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (see note |(k)):

- freehold land;

- land held under operating leases and buildings
thereon, where the fair values of the leasehold
interest in the land and buildings cannot be
measured separately at the inception of the lease
and the building is not clearly held under an

operating lease (see note |(j)(i));

In preparing these financial statements, advantage
has been taken of the provisions set out in
paragraph 80A of HKAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment, with the effect that land and buildings
which have been revalued in prior years have not
been revalued at the balance sheet date. Such
properties are stated at their carrying value less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

and will not be revalued in future years.

- buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease (see

note 1(j)(i)); and

—  other items of plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(g) Fixed assets (continued)

(ii)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Upon disposal of land and buildings which were revalued
in prior years, the attributable revaluation surplus
is transferred from the land and building revaluation
reserve to retained profits.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold land is not depreciated;

- Leasehold land is depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the remaining term of the lease;

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of the
lease and their estimated useful lives, being no
more than 40 years after the date of completion;

- Plant and machinery between 4 to 40 years; and

—  Other fixed assets between 3 to 5 years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and
are recognised in the profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(h) Construction in progress

()

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note I(k)). Cost comprises direct costs of
construction incurred, including any attributable financing
costs, during the period of construction and installation.
The asset concerned is transferred to property, plant and
equipment when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use are completed, at which

time it commences to be depreciated in accordance with the

Group’s depreciation policy.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is definite) and impairment
losses (see note I(k)). Expenditure on internally generated
goodwill and brands is recognised as an expense in the period

in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the

assets’ estimated useful lives.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed

annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives
are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful
life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually
to determine whether events and circumstances continue
to support the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set out

above.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T-TF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(j) Leased assets
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of

a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

—  property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease (see note 1(g)(i)); and

—  land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon
at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as
being held under a finance lease, unless the building
is also clearly held under an operating lease. For
these purposes, the inception of the lease is the
time that the lease was first entered into by the

Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T-TF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(j) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in the
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight line basis over the period of
the lease term except where the property is classified as

an investment property (see note |(g)).

(k) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables

Investments in equity securities (other than investments
in subsidiaries: see note I(k)(ii)) and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-
sale securities are reviewed at each balance sheet date
to determine whether there is objective evidence of

impairment.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T-TF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables (continued)
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about

one or more of the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its

cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in associates and jointly controlled
entities recognised using the equity method (see
note 1(d)), the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the
investment as a whole with its carrying amount in
accordance with note |(k)(ii). The impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount in accordance with note | (k)(ii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RHILFE (L&)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . FESFHEERE
....... (SONBINUEA) || oottt s ettt
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) (k) EEREHE)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other () REZZFRERAMERN
receivables (continued) JBL1E (4E)

- For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, - MBERATERZFE LT
the impairment loss is measured as the difference BEZRESEMS  REE
between the carrying amount of the financial asset BhNRESMEE 2RMA
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted EEMATTRRESRE
at the current market rate of return for a similar ZER > WiIRBELlEH
financial asset where the effect of discounting is EEZBamEERER
material. Impairment losses for equity securities BN E (MBREE
carried at cost are not reversed. BREE) o EEAS

IR BRERSFRERSE

ErEReE -

—  For trade and other current receivables and - TEHEERATIRZFE
other financial assets carried at amortised cost, sz B o0 Bz L At 77 B FE U
the impairment loss is measured as the difference MUK EEERE » ek
between the asset’s carrying amount and the HWEEE KN BEE
present value of estimated future cash flows, BEemEEZERA
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective BEEMAFTREBEESRE
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate REZZRITEEHE
computed at initial recognition of these assets), EzREBERF EA
where the effect of discounting is material. This R E (NRDLER
assessment is made collectively where financial ZEEEFEZERR
assets carried at amortised cost share similar risk R) o R K A5 BR
characteristics, such as similar past due status, and MWemEESHEEL
have not been individually assessed as impaired. AR EE (MAETENE
Future cash flows for financial assets which are BRAMABER) R I EE
assessed for impairment collectively are based on B FHERE R
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk BB ATAh o REW LA
characteristics similar to the collective group. BENEMEENRRE

TREDNREZERFE
Rt ERLNEESN
BEFEKCRERE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RHILFE (L&)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . FEEHBE (A
....... (SONBINUEA) || oottt s ettt et
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) (k) EEREHE)
(i)  Impairment of investments in equity securities and other () REZZFRERAMERN
receivables (continued) JB1E (4E)

- For trade and other current receivables carried - FE W BRI ELAth iR B P
at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the U R BA R A B BR - RLE
difference between the carrying amount of the BiE2UEHMEEMNIER
financial asset and the estimated future cash flows, HERATTRRESRK
discounted at the current market rate of return ENERETE - MR
for a similar financial asset where the effect of SEB A LEUS
discounting is material. R &= IR 1T 35 B R

KRB o
If in a subsequent period the amount of an R EEIEHENEER
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be HERS - mBERERS
linked objectively to an event occurring after the ARBIEEENER
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment WEBBE®Zz2EH Al
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal WEEETIRERAE
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s | - B EREEEKT
carrying amount exceeding that which would have SEFEECZREER
been determined had no impairment loss been 1B 1w N fRFA ST B F E TR
recognised in prior years. RBEBEMTE 2k

H1E °

- For available-for-sale equity securities, the - A HEES » kAT
cumulative loss that has been recognised in the ERAELFEEREB
fair value reserve is reclassified to the profit or AR RBEBERER
loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that is AR - BREERA
recognised in the profit or loss is the difference BRAEREEREZSRE
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal 2B AE GRREMAR
repayment and amortisation) and current fair value, TEEREHE) BB
less any impairment loss on that asset previously NPEE=EZEHE
recognised in the profit or loss. BRBREFERBRA

BAEARERS -
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables (continued)
Impairment losses recognised in the profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through the profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets

is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in the

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased.

- property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

—  pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held under an operating lease;

—  intangible assets;

- investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly

controlled entities; and
—  goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if

determinable.

1. ETEESHEE

(4

(k) BEERE(E)
HEmEERE ()

(i)

SFE TR E HEE

EEN T B B
AN EER LSRR
EREEMEFNRS
IR - EFEEA
BEE  SERBRFAT

WRRBMEFARARRES
RENRERE - &

HREZRMTIS SR
i E NS 8 EEE
MZEENBERRE -
MREEFMEENRE
RABRKETBIIRE
HEEMEENRER
A BIBEB Y EER
ERANSNEEER
(MREEEEMN) K
EEE AT = HEE o

BRAREESE

& E Sk H AT 2 BREL
REeFEKZIREERB
HulgmzE - AlRER
AFERRERE - IR
SELEBVERZRHE
BEE I BRERRD
PTEBREREELEEN
(RENER) 2FM@
BMECREMEE  #m
RELBIEEERRAE

i (RENMER) <&
tEEZREME  HE
EZREABEETERD
ZRAHMER A FEE
MHEREAREAERE
(i BEETE) °

ANNUAL REPORT 09/10 EE &R



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-TF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment

loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment losses is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in

which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies
the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see
notes |(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder of the annual
period, or in any other period subsequently, the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and not

the profit or loss.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-TF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

o

(m)

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their

present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period

in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter are stated at amortised cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(k)),
except where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 75 ¥ 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-T-TE=A=T-ALTE LUETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(n) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
the profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together

with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest

method.

(o) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note I(s)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of

discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are

stated at cost.

(p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject

to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within

three months of maturity at acquisition.

(q9) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined

contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect

would be material, these amounts are stated at their

present values.
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(q) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligations in respect of long service
payments are the amounts of future benefits that
employees have earned in return for their services in
the current and prior periods, calculated in accordance
with the relevant laws in Hong Kong and The People’s
Republic of China (“the PRC”).

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using binomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value of
the options is spread over the vesting period, taking into

account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is

released directly to retained profits).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(q9) Employee benefits (continued)

()

(iv)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan

which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in the profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax

payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

()

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or
in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss can be

utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the

future.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related

dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:
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BF 75 ¥ 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-T-TE=A=T-ALTE LUETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES l.

(r) Income tax (continued)

—  the same taxable entity; or

A

TESTBER (&)

(r) FRE% (&)

- different taxable entities, which, in each future

period in which significant amounts of deferred tax

liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or

recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets

and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis

or realise and settle simultaneously.

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent (s)

liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued

()

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the

issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments

to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the

“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a specified

debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance

with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Company or the Group issues a financial

guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee (being the

transaction price, unless the fair value can otherwise

be reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred

income within trade and other payables. Where

consideration is received or receivable for the issuance

of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in

accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to

that category of asset. Where no such consideration

is received or receivable, an immediate expense is

recognised in the profit or loss on initial recognition

of any deferred income. Where the guarantee is issued

by the Company in respect of the banking facilities

granted to its subsidiaries, the asset identified is a form

of capital contribution, i.e. an addition to the cost of the

investment in the subsidiary.
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in the profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note I(s)(iii) if and when (i) it
becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Company or the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Company or the Group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in trade and other payables
in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially

recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Contingent liabilities acquired in business combinations

Contingent liabilities acquired as part of a business
combination are initially recognised at fair value,
provided the fair value can be reliably measured. After
their initial recognition at fair value, such contingent
liabilities are recognised at the higher of the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation,
where appropriate, and the amount that would be
determined in accordance with note I(s)(iii). Contingent
liabilities acquired in a business combination that cannot
be reliably fair valued are disclosed in accordance with

note I(s)(iii).
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (continued)
(i)~ Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to

settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability

of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(t) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in the profit or loss as follows:

(i)  Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which are taken to be the point
in time when the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(t) Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Processing service income
Processing service income is recognised when the

relevant services are rendered.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in the profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in the profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised
as income in the accounting period in which they are

earned.

Dividends
- Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive

payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment

goes ex-dividend.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . TEESHHEE)
....... (oMU ) e e,
(t) Revenue recognition (continued) (t) WA®R(E)

()

(vi)  Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the balance sheet
initially as deferred income when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as revenue in the profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in the profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation

expense.

(vi)  Management fee income and commission income
Management fee income and commission income are

recognised when the relevant services are rendered.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in the profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

determined.
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(u) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of
foreign operations acquired on or after | January 2005, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before | January 2005 is translated at the

foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of

the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is

reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or

loss on disposal is recognised.

(v) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of

that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period

in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all

the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its

intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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kLR K A5 B & F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(w) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group or
exercise significant influence over the Group in making
financial and operating policy decisions, or has joint

control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture

in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Group, or a close family member of such an
individual, or is an entity under the control, joint control

or significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred to
in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or

significant influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity

that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

. TESHEEE)

(w) BBEAL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥ 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-F-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(x) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued one new HKFRS, a number of amendments
to HKFRSs and new Interpretations that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of
these, the following developments are relevant to the Group’s

financial statements:
- HKFRS 8, Operating segments
- HKAS | (revised 2007), Presentation of financial statements

- Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures

— improving disclosures above financial instruments
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

BF 5 ¥ 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RILFE (L&)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

- Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)

- Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial
statements — cost of an investment in a subsidiary, jointly

controlled entity or associate

- HKAS 23 (revised 2007), Borrowing costs

The “Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)”, which comprise a number
of minor and non-urgent amendments to a range of HKFRSs which
the HKICPA has issued as an omnibus batch of amendments,
and the amendment to HKAS 23 has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial statements as the amendments and
Interpretations were consistent with policies already adopted by
the Group. The impact of the remainder of these developments is

as follows:

- HKFRS 8 requires segment disclosure to be based on the
way that the Group’s chief operating decision maker regards
and manages the Group, with the amounts reported for each
reportable segment being the measures reported to the
Group’s chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
assessing segment performance and making decisions about
operating matters. This contrasts with the presentation
of segment information in prior years which was based on
a disaggregation of the Group’s financial statements into
segments based on related products and services and on
geographical areas. The adoption of HKFRS 8 has resulted
in the presentation of segment information in a manner that
is more consistent with internal reporting provided to the
Group’s most senior executive management, but has not
resulted in additional reportable segments being identified and
presented (see note |3). Corresponding amounts have also
been provided on a basis consistent with the revised segment

information.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iL /K 7 B & 6

BF 7% ¥ 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-TF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

As a result of the adoption of HKAS | (revised 2007),
details of changes in equity during the period arising from
transactions with equity shareholders in their capacity as such
have been presented separately from all other income and
expenses in a revised consolidated statement of changes in
equity. All other items of income and expense are presented
in the consolidated income statement, if they are recognised
as part of profit or loss for the period, or otherwise in
a new primary statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Corresponding amounts have been
restated to conform to the new presentation. This change in
presentation has no effect on reported profit or loss, total
income and expense or net assets for any period presented.

As a result of the adoption of the amendments to HKFRS
7, the financial statements include expanded disclosures
in note 32(f) about the fair value measurement of the
Group’s financial instruments, categorising these fair value
measurements into a three-level fair value hierarchy according
to the extent to which they are based on observable market
data. The Group has taken advantage of the transitional
provisions set out in the amendments to HKFRS 7, under
which comparative information for the newly required
disclosures about the fair value measurements of financial
instruments has not been provided.

The amendments to HKAS 27 have removed the requirement
that dividends out of pre-acquisition profits should be
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment in the investee, rather than as income. As a
result, as from | April 2009, all dividends receivable from
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, whether
out of pre- or post-acquisition profits, will be recognised in
the Company’s profit or loss and the carrying amount of the
investment in the investee will not be reduced unless that
carrying amount is assessed to be impaired as a result of the
investee declaring the dividend. In such cases, in addition
to recognising dividend income in the profit or loss, the
Company would recognise an impairment loss. In accordance
with the transitional provisions in the amendment, this new
policy will be applied prospectively to any dividends receivable
in the current or future periods and previous periods have
not been restated.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-TF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
3. TURNOVER 3. BEXHE

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and
sale of garments and textiles, the provision of processing services
and the rental of properties. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the financial

statements.

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods supplied to
customers, fee income from processing services and rental income

from customers (including associates) and is analysed as follows:

FEECITEXBRUEREER
KRHsm RENTREMWEA
E-MBLARAZEREXEBRHEMESN
HERMBIRRMEEIS

EXBAMREREF (BEBERF)
ERMEEEE MIRBEBARME
EWA - ADHFTWT

2010 2009

—E-ZF —EEhF

$°000 $°000

FT FrT

Manufacture and sale of garments REREERK 1,276,747 1,585,676
Manufacture and sale of textiles REREEHER 17,031 15,592
Processing services income n T AR U A 10,997 16,675
Property rental income MEHRETWA 5,267 7,586
1,310,042 1,625,529

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes only one
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group’s turnover. For the year ended 31 March 2010, revenue
from sales of garments to this customer, including sales to entities
which are known to the Group to be under common control with
this customer, amounted to approximately $196,712,000 (2009:
$254,310,000). Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from

this customer are set out in note 32(a).

AEBZEFEBRESHN RE—
BEFRBRREBEEIEZI10% B
E-E-EF=ZA=+—HLEFE"
BKBEEALEF  BEZILEFE
Hl @88 HEHERA %196,712,000
T (ZEZ N & 1 254,310,0000T) ©
EEFMIlEZEESPRKRFEMD
B 1E f 5E32(a) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 7% ¥ 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T-TE=A=T-ALTE LUETH)

4. . OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME/(LOSS) = 4. HftWARWE  (HH)FE
2010 2009
—B-BE —TEAE
$°000 $°000
F T
Other revenue Hgg A
Commission income = ON 1,864 3,754
Dividends income from unlisted equity FLEMREZRS ZREWA
securities 422 415
Interest income FE WA 1,041 1,192
Management fee income EEEAKRA 804 804
Sundry income Hiblg A 522 1,203
4,653 7,368
Other net income/(loss) Hi A (F518) F8
Gain on disposal of quota HER RS - 637
Net exchange gain/(loss) E X, (F8) 38 982 (13,422)
Scrap income BRI A 2,045 3,040
(Loss)/gain on disposals of plant and HEREREEREM
machinery and other fixed assets BEEEE (BEB) Wi (380) 42
Net claims income BEEDFUA 975 422
Write-off of intangible assets (note /6) B EEMEE (Aitl6) (1,305) -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A EREE S ZRE
equity securities (note | /(b)) &8 (ML) - (4,044)
Recovery of loans receivable written off W B A BAAE N 2
in prior years EWER 2,305 3,336
Extinguishment of aged payables O, R HA R BB B RIE 6,395 -
Sundry income HAib g A 98 117
11,115 (9.872)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-TF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

A

5. BRBiAIER

BRELADER S MR (GHA) ¢

2010 2009
—®-8F -TIAF
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
(a) Finance costs: (a) BAERE:
Interest on bank loans wholly AROFRBHER
repayable within five years ZIRITERFE
(including bank charges) (BIERITER) 5,634 9,238
(b) Staff costs:* (b) BITRA:*
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IERHMER 200,026 229,500
Contributions to defined contribution B L ROR IR ET S ALK
retirement schemes 10,195 4,187
(Reversal of provision)/provision for RERES (BE)
long service payments, net (note 30) BB (M 30) (3,008) 8,430
207,213 242,117
(c) Other items: (c) HfEAE:
Cost of inventories* 7 & B A 1,096,120 1,323,270
Amortisation of land lease premium FAE LT RIBE 70 70
Depreciation* B 24,495 25,354
Impairment loss on trade and other EWERREMERRZ
receivables (note 23(b)) BB RSB (M 230)) 3,022 3,609
Impairment loss on dividends receivable FEWRE ZREEIE - 1,478
Auditors’ remuneration BEE S 1,644 1,646
Operating lease charges: KREHEER
minimum lease payments BRIEEENSRE
— property rentals* - ¥z HE* 7,253 6,899
Rentals receivable from investment REVMERKA SR EE
properties less direct outgoings of % H1,750,0005T (=&
$1,750,000 (2009: $2,081,000) ZF 1 2,081,0007T) @3,517) (5,505)
# Cost of inventories includes $104,203,000 (2009: $126,164,000) # FERABIEEIRA - ITEEH -

relating to staff costs, depreciation expenses, amortisation of land
lease premium and operating lease charges, which amount is also

included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above

for each of these types of expenses.

HETHRERERCEHEER
BB FIE 104,203,000t (ZZEZH,
F 1 126,164,0007T) - BEAZBFETS DL
AELXPBEINRZEBEEBERA
B o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥ 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T-TE=A=T-ALTE CUETH)

GAIN ON DISPOSALS OF LAND AND
BUILDINGS AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

this disposal.

On 9 September 2009, the Company entered into an agreement
with a third party to dispose of land and buildings and investment
properties with total area of approximately 12,440 square meters
situated in Macau for a total consideration of $120,000,000. A gain
on disposal of $81,133,000 was recognised in the consolidated

income statement for the year ended 31 March 2010 in respect of

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT

Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents:

HELHRBFREEWE RS

RZZBEZEAFLANB XA FH
—EBUE=ATWE UER
{&120,000,0007T i & fu AR PIZAEH
HENRIN440FF Rzt REF
RREYPE -BE-ZT—SFE=f
=E+—BLEE HESEMBKRSE
81,133,000t B RSB R RPWE

=
o ©

REBRBERIANAEH

(@ HREBBRPARNAERS:

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EELF
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Current tax - AEBRBE-FEBRNEHR
Hong Kong Profits Tax
Provision for the year RERIBERE 5,927 12,179
Over-provision in respect of prior years LA fXFEBRER & (2,645) (331)
3,282 11,848
Current tax - Outside Hong Kong ~ AFEH1E - FHHFE I
Provision for the year AERIEERE 14,830 1,269
Over-provision in respect of prior years B {¥ F E B EER B (189) (1,573)
14,641 (304)
Deferred tax BEEMREH
Origination and reversal of temporary IREENEERRE
differences 2,163 (8,097)
20,086 3,447
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥ 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

@

Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents:

(continued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2010 is
calculated at 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable

profits for the year.

Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are charged at
the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant

jurisdictions.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC,
certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are eligible for the
exemption from income tax for two years starting from the
first profitable year of operation and thereafter, a 50 percent
relief from their applicable tax rate for the following three
years (“the tax holiday”). Pursuant to the notice on the
Implementation Rules of the Grandfathering Relief under the
New Tax Law, Guofa (2007) No.39 issued on 26 December
2007 by the State Council, one of the PRC subsidiaries
continue to enjoy the tax holiday under the grandfathering
provision of the New Tax Law with the standard tax rate of
25% until December 2012.

B

7. GEBEBEXRATNFAEH (&)

REBERPARNAEHRS
(#48)

—E-TEEEBANESHBER
WRANEE 2 {h 5 SR R R L
16.5% (ZZEEHE : 165%) BB
Rt HE o

BB AT 2 BER R
SRS A B A 2 BT B R
HE o

RIBEFENAEEER  AEEHN
o REIFE A TR B & EER
FEERNMFEREAEHR  WE
HEZFHR*RBWEPENE
DRAMBBABE (RBIH] -
REBEBRE-ZZTLtF+=A
T ARBEANCEREREE
Fri8BiBEEEBRNEN) (E
E%[2007]395%) » HAp — R H
B 2 R A% AR IR 3T B A BA25% M
EERREEZERBBE=Z
——f+=A-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥ 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RE-T—TF=A=+—AILER (LUETH)
7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 1. REBBEXRAROFAES (A)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at (b) FIEHRZHEMEEFRBERAB
applicable tax rates: R ERH R
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EEhF
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Profit before taxation BR L AR R 123,732 75,614

Notional tax on profit before taxation, RBEHBERESENH

calculated at the rates applicable to BAREFERBAER

profits in the countries concerned HNEHEHRE 11,700 9,752
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR EZ HNFHESE 4,453 4,975
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BAGHRIBRANRELE (3,422) (9,536)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not REATEARER AT

recognised BRENREZE 4,532 347
Tax concession enjoyed by certain TEHCXERFEEN

subsidiaries in the PRC Hes - (187)
Tax effect of undistributed profits of EEDNRRDEREFZ

jointly controlled entities BEge 5,657 -
Over-provision in respect of prior years LA {XF EBEERE (2,834) (1,904)
Actual tax expense ERFEXH 20,086 3,447
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RHILFE (L&)

8...DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION . . ... 8 EZEMs ...
Directors’ remuneration, disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the RIEEB(RATRBDE 16 FZHREM
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: ARBZESHESOT :
Salaries,
allowances Retirement 2010
Directors’  and benefits Discretionary scheme “Z-EF
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e RE
Exne RHEMER BETL BAGHELER CE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr F Fr
Executive Directors HITEZS
Mr. Chan Sui Kau BRERELE 30 1,463 1,200 - 2,693
Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter BRXELE 30 2,730 1,025 60 3,845
Mr. Chan Wing Kee BRAEEE 30 2,730 1,550 60 4,370
Mr. Chan Wing To BABEE 30 960 1,000 - 1,990
Ms. Chan Suk Man ALt 30 1,664 1,000 60 2,754
Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel RAZEE 30 - - - 30
Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley BBk L 30 - - - 30
Mr. So Ying Woon, Alan BEELE 30 1,355 850 60 2,295

Independent Non-executive ~ BUYFHTEE

Directors
Mr. Leung Hok Lim REREE 160 - - - 160
Mr. Wong Lam IREE 60 - - - 60
Mr. Lin Keping MEFEE 60 - - - 60

Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael AR EE
(appointed on 26 March 2010) (R=2-%fF
ZAZt+RBEZE) - - - - -

520 10,902 6,625 240 18,287
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T-TE=A=T-ALTE LUETH)

8...DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) ...~ 8. FESEME M) .. ...
Salaries,
allowances Retirement 2009
Directors’ and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme “EEZNE
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 2N
Exg  RHMER WA BATELER Eh
$000 $000 $°000 $000 $000
Fr F Fr F F
Executive Directors HTER
Mr. Chan Sui Kau R L 30 1,463 1,200 - 2,693
Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter BAELRE 30 2,730 1,025 60 3,845
Mr. Chan Wing Kee BRAEEE 30 2,730 1,550 60 4370
Mr. Chan Wing To Bk EEE 30 960 1,000 - 1,990
Ms. Chan Suk Man gRATz+ 30 1,664 1,000 60 2,754
Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel RAZEE 30 - - - 30
Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley BB Z L 30 - - - 30
Mr. So Ying Woon, Alan BEELE 30 1,355 900 60 2,345

Independent Non-executive ~ BUYFHTEE

Directors
Mr. Leung Hok Lim REREE 160 - - - 160
Mr. Wong Lam IREE 60 - - - 60
Mr. Lin Keping MEFEE 60 - - - 60
520 10,902 6,675 240 18,337
9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS = 9. B@MEAL . .. . ..
The five highest paid individuals of the Group for both years are all AEEXNMEBzANESHME AL
directors of the Company and details of their emoluments are set URADAES  REWE 2R
out in note 8 above. £ XX HiEES ©
10. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 10. XABREHFE ABMEEF
....... SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY e
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the APREREBTEAELMGEEENE
Company includes a profit of $106,205,000 (2009: $28,502,000) FE—Z280WAXRDATERERN
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the 7%= A1106,205,000T (ZZEEZ N, F
Company. 28,502,0007C) °

ANNUAL REPORT 09/10 #FEF R



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
¥ » ik = s B
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
11. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a) Tax effects relating to each component of other
comprehensive income
The components of other comprehensive income do not have

any significant tax effect for the years ended 31 March 2010

11, Ete2mEu s

H At 2 T8 W35 B9 & AR RR 3B 4D RO B

(2)

BeE

B

BE-F-FER-BEAE=
B=+-BLEE Ht2EK

and 2009. HAERER G L REEEARE
2
(b) Reclassification adjustments relating to components of (b) HttZ Uk AR EH
other comprehensive income DERE
2010 2009
S5 L
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Available-for-sale securities: R EEE
Changes in fair value recognised FRARERATEE
during the year 2 E 101 (4,402)
Reclassification adjustments for amounts & ZE A E 5
transferred to profit or loss: FRYE
— impairment losses (note 4) —REE B (M it4) = 4,044
Net movement in the investment FREHMLZEKREA
revaluation reserve during the year BRNREEM
recognised in other comprehensive B E
income 101 (358)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RHILFE (L&)

12.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
$103,479,000 (2009: $71,877,000) and 210,369,000 (2009:
210,369,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share
The diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic
earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential
ordinary shares in existence during the years ended 3| March
2010 and 2009.

. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its business by divisions. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has presented the following three reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the following

reportable segments.

- Manufacture and sale of garments and textiles: this segment
operates the manufacture and sale of garment and textile
products, and the provision of garment sub-contracting

services.

- Interests in jointly controlled entities: the Group’s jointly
controlled entities engage in the manufacturing and sale of

textile yarn products.

- Property leasing: this segment leases commercial and

industrial premises to generate rental income.

12,

BRER

() BREXEF
EREXRBINDREERERN
AAGRREFEEAEMLGF
103,479,000t (ZEF N F :
71,877,0007T) R F A E BITES
B% B% 19210,369,0000% (= F N1
1 210,369,0008%) 5+ & o

(b) EREBEBEERF
BE-Z-ZER-ZENF=
A=+—BLEE > AARLE
EEEEBEREICTER &
HWEREXRBFESGREERF
EIEI

REBUDHBREBHER - NEH
LarEEESTHREEAERNZ
BREN (BRI BERRFAMMERR) -
MAEXZFUAT=ET2H D - &
BEEIMKLED B AERT I

;D

- RENHERKREAHM LD
BARERHEERRRSBER -
KR AR T AR -

- RERQRAER AEEEELT
RELEREEHBORER -

- PEEE LS MHEEERT
ERFRHBSKA -
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(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) PWEE -BEEREE

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the

following bases:

Manufacture and sale of garments and textiles and property
leasing segments

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of
intangible assets, interest in associate, other financial assets,
deferred tax assets, current tax recoverable and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include all liabilities
managed directly by the segments with the exception
of current tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other

corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation

of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “adjusted
EBITDA” i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded
as including investment income and “depreciation and
amortisation” is regarded as including impairment losses
on non-current assets. To arrive at “adjusted EBITDA”,
the Group’s earnings are further adjusted for items not
specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
share of profits less losses of associates, directors’ and
auditors’ remuneration and other head office or corporate

administration costs.

RAEIBREARIEDBE
B AEESRTHRERASR
UTEEEEZT 280 AAEEE
MEE EERERE:

HE 78
NHEEREMEEE  ETE
BELEE BEQARER H
hEMEE - ELREHEE
ABREAPHRBERAGBEESR
E-DHEEEERASBEEE
BENREEE EFBREERAE
HBE BEMSHEEREM
bEEE-

THRERATEHRIBHBARX
EUEL DA EENBRARM

XHBABRELDTMNEERE

FEEMEENIHME °

ARBEDMER ZFHETES
[FRAEMERAE - BB - ERE
HAWE]  TFMEIRAEHE
REWA MTEREBHEIRE
BEFIRDEENRERSE 5
ERARNMKIE BB -TER
BEANKRRE  AEESMRY
EAEBENMER 2B 2EE (F
MG EE N B B RBEE
ESRRHAME R HMANHE
BEREETHREAR) E-—SHE

BRI
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RHILFE (L&)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

Manufacture and sale of garments and textiles and property
leasing segments (continued)

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted EBITDA, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
sales), interest income and expense from cash balances and
borrowings managed directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment losses and additions to non-
current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to

prices charged to external parties for similar orders.

Interests in jointly controlled entities

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method, and presented as a separate reportable
segment. The Group’s senior executive management reviews
the post-tax results of the interests in jointly controlled
entities, which is defined as the reportable segment profit for
this particular segment. Reportable segment assets represent
the Group’s share of net assets of the jointly controlled
entities. Revenue of jointly controlled entities is not
presented as reportable segment revenue as it is not reviewed
by the Group’s senior executive management for resource

allocation purposes.

13. 9%

(2)

PR & (A

DEKE BEREE(A)
HERFELRR 4 im RYF
HE 88 (#E)
BRESHERAZNRINE B
EoERBHEANREZDE
EX G EEETESEHEKA
(BEIMEBHEEE) B
EREECREABRREEZA
BWARSH e - #E KRR
EEERIBABERANEEZHF
RO BEENER - 2 IWEH
ENERSZHMIEALZE
LI RT BB -

EE LA R
FEEREELTZ
BBERRERERIHEANER
WA-—BIBETERD IR -
REESRITHEBAEEHNS
ENRBERBR 2EE
END BRI ERAT2HD
A ATERIMEENERE
BEECEENRNEEFE AR
FEESRITHEBRAERERE
BagRREERUNRAEERD
B HERYRREATFERD
BUAFIR e

<
<

EEERS
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(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (@) IHXEE EEREE(H)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as BE-Z-ZER-ZZTAE=
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management A=1+T—BLFE RBHFERE
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of ERSITHEBAERIEERS
segment performance for the years ended 31 March 2010 and M2 BREFENAEEET
2009 is set out below: 2WRIFERMT :

Manufacture and sale of ~ Interests in jointly

garments and textiles controlled entities Property leasing Total
HERHERK
k48R RENTEE NERE EEl
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

“R-3F CRRAF CEF-BF CTEAF CF-RF CTTAF CR-BF CEENA
£000 $000 $000 $000 §000 $000 $000 $000
Fi i Fi I i i Fi 7

Revenue from external customers  REANREFHKA 1,304,775 1,617,943 - - 5,267 7586 1,310,042 1,625529
Inter-segment revenue AREHBHHA - - - - 3,143 3,985 3,143 3,985
Reportable segment revenue AT 2HHAFUA 1,304,775 1,617,943 - - 9,010 1571 1,313,785 1,629514

Reportable segment profit BTRENADER

(adjusted EBITDA) (MBRHE - HE
HERBHEAN
RBENKE) 31,313 7620 34237 38,193 6,713 8149 72313 1564
Interest income FIEBA 1,041 1192 - - - - 1,041 1192
Finance costs HERR (5,634) (9,238) - - - - (5,634) (9,239)
Depreciation and amortisation 175 [ (24565)  (25424) - - - - (4565 (5404
Impairment loss on fixed assets ~ BEEEHERE (21,014) - - - - - (21,014 -

Reportable segment assets ~ AF2HMABEE

(including interest in (BEBELTER)

associate) 578415 632073 513,133 474 8371 93,028 1,175,259 1202325
Additions to non-current segment B R IE MR E

assets during the year PHEE 4,155 17407 - - - - 4,155 17,407
Reportable segment liabilities Z¥2HMNAHERE 185,774 314555 - - 206 1042 185,980 315597
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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. DA E ()

(b) EFERHIHBA  BRHE
B -EEREBEBEZHER

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit

or loss, assets and liabilities

2010 2009
—2-2F —EENF
$°000 $000
Fr Fr
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue BT 2RI IBUIA 1,313,785 1,629,514
Elimination of inter-segment revenue DEBEE B U AR E 85 (3,743) (3,985)
Consolidated turnover mMEE¥ER 1,310,042 1,625,529
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Profit Vvl
Reportable segment profit derived REEEIAREFHND M
from Group’s external customers A (HBRRE -~ BLE
(adjusted EBITDA) FERBHFEANARR
YU ) 72,323 122,564
Finance costs A& A AR (5,634) (9,238)
Share of profits less losses FE AL B 2 1 B 0% FRL S 18
of associates 1,306 1,151
Gain on disposal of associate HEBE QA RRE - 4,684
Impairment losses on interest in BENRRRREREE
associate and dividend receivable AEIREREREE
from associate (7,914) -
Impairment loss on fixed assets BEEEERERE (21,014) -
Gain on disposals of land and buildings HETHREFRERE
and investment properties L EANE 81,133 -
Net valuation gains/(losses) on REMEGLERE (FHB)
investment properties HER 20,915 (7,845)
Other revenue and net income/(loss) Hg AR Ehdias,
(F518) #5 15,768 (2,504)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (24,565) (25,424)
Unallocated head office and corporate ROBRBREEER
expenses (8,586) (7,774)
Consolidated profit before taxation SREBRBAER 123,732 75,614
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13, DA ME ()

(b) EFERHIHBA  BRHE
B -EEREBZHER(H)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit

or loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

2010 2009
—®-8F —TTAF
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Assets BE

Reportable segment assets BETERNIBEE 1,175,259 1,202,325
Intangible assets B EE 1,569 2,874
Interest in associate Bt N B R - 6,586
Other financial assets HithemEE 5,820 5,986
Deferred tax assets EIEFTEHERE 17,301 7,765
Current tax recoverable ] 2B AN HIF 18 2,311 242

Unallocated head office and ROBBHBRECEEE
corporate assets 986 2,057
Consolidated total assets REEEHRR 1,203,246 1,227,835
2010 2009
—®-2& —TERE
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr

Liabilities =F

Reportable segment liabilities BFERNIHEE 185,980 315,597
Current tax payable FEAAREAEH 17,131 8,805
Deferred tax liabilities EEFSHAE 26,788 15,432

Unallocated head office and ROBRIREEEE
corporate liabilities 3,595 3,382
Consolidated total liabilities mEBEeEE 233,494 343,216
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(c) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external
customers and (ii) the Group’s fixed assets, intangible assets,
goodwill and interests in associate and jointly controlled
entities (“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at which
the services were provided or the goods delivered. The
geographical location of the specified non-current assets is
based on the physical location of the asset, in the case of
property, plant and equipment, the location of the operation
to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets
and goodwill, and the location of operations, in the case of

interests in associate and jointly controlled entities.

13. 2 MHmE (&)

(c) HESHER

TREINEB)EAEERB IR
EEHRBA RIVAEEBREE
E-BFEE BEBRREZLA
ARGEQATER (BEHR
BHEENBEIDER - FF
FREMIRRHIRE KA & it B
E-BEFRRBEEMEUHER
BEENERUEME WX
MERLBRALEMIME -
MEFEEREE REELQT
REE QTR i B3R AT
PRV EEMBETE ©

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMREFHBA BEERBEE
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-Z2F CZ—ITENF ZE-TE CZTINF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr F F F
Hong Kong (place of domicile) BB (REBFRTH) 119,540 107,724 94,346 80,259
Europe 5@
—~ United Kingdom - KH 296,514 386,335 - -
— France —EE 26,506 41,460 = -
— Other European countries - HtBUNE R 425,194 501,208 - -
Mainland China e 187,692 226,565 608,775 615,307
North America JEEN 152,317 207,535 = 1,266
Others Hith 102,279 154,702 1,568 39,598
1,190,502 1,517,805 610,343 656,171
1,310,042 1,625,529 704,689 736,430
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14. FIXED ASSETS e 14 BEEE
(a) The Group (a) *5H
Interest in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings use under
held for ~ Plant and Other Investment  operating
ownuse machinery fixed assets  Sub-total properties lease Total
BELE
BEERN K& Rt HEZAR
IHRET k% ETEE M REME BELH L
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr r Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Cost or valuation: RAHMEE :
At | April 2008 RZZENE
A-H 115,884 205,349 113,678 434911 100,432 2,982 538,325
Exchange adjustments ERE 1,352 3,969 1,092 6,413 44| 67 6,921
Transferred from construction ERBHARIE
in progress (note 15) (HE15) - 1,860 168 2,028 - - 2,028
Additions ®E - 5,765 9,302 15,067 - - 15,067
Disposals L& - (16,772) (25,850) (42,622) - - (42,622)
Deficit on revaluation BffER - - - - (7,845) - (7,845)
At 31 March 2009 R-BENE
=ZA=t-H 117,236 200,171 98,390 415,797 93,028 3,049 511,874
Representing: %
Cost KA 117,236 200,171 98,390 415,797 - 3,049 418,846
Valuation - 2009 E-ZTTNEF - - - - 93,028 - 93,028
117,236 200,171 98,390 415,797 93,028 3,049 511,874

ANNUAL REPORT 09/10 EE&F R



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

53

iL ® K £ W

A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B &
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(a) The Group (continued)

14. BIEEE (&)

() &&EE(#F)

Interest in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings use under
held for ~ Plant and Other Investment  operating
ownuse machinery fixed assets  Sub-total properties lease Total
BELE
BEERN K& Rt HEZER
THREF k#E ETEE M REWME HELH L
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr r Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Cost or valuation: RAHMEE :
At | April 2009 RZZEhE
A-H 117,236 200,171 98,390 415,797 93,028 3,049 511,874
Exchange adjustments ERAR 196 567 168 931 70 10 1,011
Transferred from construction ERBERIE
in progress (note 15) (HE15) - 1,232 - 1,232 - - 1,232
Additions ®E - 467 3,067 3,534 - - 3,534
Disposals HE (21,717) (19,59) (3,750 (45,065) (30,302) - (75,367)
Surplus on revaluation EffBEH - - - - 20,915 - 20,915
At 31 March 2010 R-2-%%
=ZA=t-H 95,715 182,839 97,875 376,429 83,711 3,059 463,199
Representing: %
Cost B 95,715 182,839 97,875 376,429 - 3,059 379,488
Valuation - 2010 hE--2-%F - - - - 83711 - 83,711
95,715 182,839 97,875 376,429 83,711 3,059 463,199
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14, FIXED ASSETS (continued) . . ... . 4. BEEEM)
(a) The Group (continued) (a) X5KHE (&)

Interest in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings use under
held for ~ Plant and Other Investment  operating

ownuse machinery fixed assets ~ Sub-total properties lease Total
BEEE
BEERN K& Bt BEZAR

IHREF k#% ETEE P RENE BELH EH
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr

Accumulated 2irEE
amortisation, FERAE:
depreciation and
impairment:
At | April 2008 RZZENE
A-AH 4,840 146,505 85,274 274,619 - 857 275476
Exchange adjustments B R AR 584 2,608 751 3,943 - 19 3,962
Charge for the year REERHERAE 4109 8,383 12,862 25,354 - 70 25,424
Weritten back on disposals HERER - (16,305) (25,820) (42,125) - - (42,125)
At 31 March 2009 RZBE0E
=ZA=t-H 47,533 141,191 73,067 261,791 - 946 262,737
At 1 April 2009 RZBENE
mA-H 47533 141,191 73,067 261,791 - 946 262,737
Exchange adjustments EHAZE 90 406 132 628 - 3 631
Charge for the year TEEBHERINE 4421 10,405 9,669 24,495 - 70 24,565
Weritten back on disposals LERER (13,152) (19,156) (3.427) (35,735) - - (35,735)
Impairment loss HEEE - 19,044 1,677 20,721 - 293 21,014
At 31 March 2010 R=B-%F
ZB=t-H 38,892 151,890 81,118 271,900 - 1,312 213212
Net book value: RERE:
At 31 March 2010 R=B-%F
=ZB=t-8H 56,823 30,949 16,757 104,529 83,711 1,747 189,987
At 31 March 2009 RZEERE
ZA=t-H 69,703 58,980 25,323 154,006 93,028 2,103 249,137
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T-TE=A=T-ALTE LUETH)

14, FIXED ASSETS (continued) . . ... . 4. BEEEM) .
(b) The Company (b) AAF
Land and
buildings
held for  Plant and Other Investment
own use machinery fixed assets  Sub-total properties Total
BEARAN K Hit
THREF k#E EREE Mt REWE EE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr

Cost or valuation: B {EE :

At | April 2008 RZZZEN\FWMA—-A 45,789 10,979 50,489 107,257 119,114 226,371

Additions ®E - - 1,684 1,684 - 1,684
Disposals & - (10,833) (25,145) (35,978) - (35,978)
Deficit on revaluation E {518 - - - - (14,950) (14,950)

At 31 March 2009 R-ZEERF

=A=1+-H 45,789 146 27,028 72,963 104,164 177,127

Representing: Lt
Cost B 45,789 146 27,028 72,963 - 72,963
Valuation — 2009 HE-ZEEhE - - - - 104,164 104,164
45,789 146 27,028 72,963 104,164 177,127

Cost or valuation:  HAZEE :

At | April 2009 R=ZZZENFMA—-H 45,789 146 27,028 72,963 104,164 177,127
Additions 2E - - 697 697 - 697
Disposals HE (11,830) - (1,110) (12,940) (30,302) (43,242)
Surplus on revaluation EHEH - - - - 33,108 33,108

At 31 March 2010 R-ZE-ZfF

=A=t-H 33,959 146 26,615 60,720 106,970 167,690

Representing: (e
Cost %N 33,959 146 26,615 60,720 - 60,720
Valuation - 2010 HE-ZF-%% - - - - 106,970 106,970
33,959 146 26,615 60,720 106,970 167,690
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14. FIXED ASSETS (continued) . . . . ... . 14. BEEE M) ..o
(b) The Company (continued) (b) ART (#)
Land and
buildings
held for  Plant and Other Investment
own use machinery fixed assets  Sub-total properties Total
BEERMN HBE Hitr
T REF k#E EREE Mt REWE EE
$000 $°000 $000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr F
Accumulated RitEs HER
amortisation, wE:

depreciation and

impairment:
At | April 2008 RZZBE\FEA-H 12,316 10,979 43,289 66,584 - 66,584
Charge for the year ~ AEEHEHERITE 1,767 - 2,149 3916 - 3916
Written back on HEERE

disposals - (10,833) (25,145) (35,978) - (35,978)

At 31 March 2009 R-ZEERF

ZA=+-8H 14,083 146 20,293 34,522 - 34,522
At | April 2009 R-ZZZENEMA—H 14,083 146 20,293 34,522 - 34,522
Charge for the year ~ AEEBERITE 1,718 - 2,274 3,99 - 3,99
Written back on HERRE
disposals (3,265) - (1,107) (4372 - (4372

At 31 March 2010 R-E-ZfF

Net book value: REFE:
At3l March 2010 R=-Z-ZfF
=A=+-AH 21,423 - 5,155 26,578 106,970 133,548

At 31 March 2009 RZEZRE
=A=+-H 31,706 - 6,735 38,441 104,164 142,605
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14. FIXED ASSETS (continued) . . .. ... . 14. BIEEE M) ...
(c) Revaluation of investment properties (c) REYEEM
All investment properties of the Group and the Company R-ZBE-ZFE=ZRA=1+—HAXE
were revalued at 31 March 2010 on an open market value BRAABHNREYEREBSW
basis calculated by reference to net rental income allowing AR BEZRBRNYETIHEE
for reversionary income potential. The valuations were HeBtIEATTEARTENT
carried out by independent firms of surveyors, Knight Frank MEEEM -  WRKHBIAER
Petty Limited and RHL Appraisal Limited, who have among TEERGAFTHITERAAR
their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors KFTHEEBERATELMG
with recent experience in the location and category of the B ZEHIEMT2REAT B
properties being valued. RHEMBEEERSE > HEMMA
HENEZHERENEHEESE
KB o
(d) The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows: d) VEZREFEINAOT :
The Group The Company
XEE NG
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-Z2F ZEZENF ZB-BF CZZENF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Medium term leases FERTR A
~ in Hong Kong -E% 86,879 70716 128,393 98,015
- outside Hong Kong -BEBUMEE 55,402 56,263 - -
Freehold KAKRE
- outside Hong Kong -EBUMEE - 37,855 - 37,855
142,281 164,834 128,393 135,870
Representing: K&
Land and buildings TR EF 56,823 69,703 21,423 31,706
Investment properties RENME 83,711 93,028 106,970 104,164
140,534 162,731 128,393 135,870
Interest in leasehold land RIFREHREZ
held for own-use under BERAEELH
operating lease 1,747 2,103 - -
142,281 164,834 128,393 135,870
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RHILFE (L&)

(e) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases

®

The Group and the Company lease out investment properties
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to three years, with an option to renew the
lease after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.

None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The gross carrying amounts of investment properties of the
Group and the Company held for use in operating leases were
$83,711,000 (2009: $93,028,000) and $106,970,000 (2009:
$104,164,000), respectively.

All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property are

classified as investment properties.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

kLR K A B A&

14. BIEEE (#)

() URBHEANHENENEE

AEBRAADUEERESYN
HEREWE - HESWIH -
RE-—FE=F TEAEEE
EROMEBREN  BRFAAHEOK
REYEHHE - MERESHL
TREIEEE -

AEBRALAFELER
ENREYVELERTED A
£83,711,000t (ZZEZENF
93,028,0007T) 106,970,000
(ZEZNEF 1 104,164,0007T) °

FENAEREMEERUEEH
ERENNEIBRRRENE -

FEBERBETUBRBRNELEHEE
EHERBRUNRERASIRER
BT :

2010 2009

—E-ZF —EEhF

$°000 $000

Fr Fr

Within | year —FR 4,333 6,509
Impairment loss on fixed assets (Hh BEEERERE

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group underwent
a restructuring of its operations in the PRC pursuant to
which certain factories were closed down and related fixed
assets became idle. Management assessed the recoverable
amounts of the Group’s fixed assets taking into consideration
the usability of fixed assets. As a result of this assessment,
an impairment loss of $21,014,000 was recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 3| March
2010. The estimates of recoverable amount were based
on the assets’ fair values less costs to sell, determined by
reference to the recent observable market prices for similar

assets within the same industry.

BE-_Z-ZF=A=+—-HL
FER AEEEAHRTEL
EMEARE ¥R mEERKE
BAeEEEERARE BEE
REBEEENTAMEFEEA
WEEE Bt RBEE=2—
FEE=ZHA=1+—-ALEE  ®BE
E51821,014,000 T EEAr A BE X
WA -AKREHERRIEEE
WAFEEREERABELE
SRIFHE - TEFREEEW
ABETBEENE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T-TE=A=T-ALTE LUETH)

13:. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS ... . 15 BEIR ..,
The Group
RE
2010 2009
—®-%F —TBhE
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
At | April BB —H 609 291
Exchange adjustments R 2 6
Additions BE 621 2,340
Transferred to fixed assets (note [4(a)) HERABEEEE (B3 14(a) (1,232) (2,028)
At 31 March R=ZA=+—8 - 609
16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS s 6. |MIEEE ...,
The Group The Company
REE N
Club Club
debentures debentures
=E 25
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
At | April 2008, 31 March 2009 R=ZEBENFEA—AB -
and | April 2009 —EENF=ZRA=+—H
E—Z2ZAFNA—-A 2,874 2,384
Amount written off during the year (note 4) N E M 8H & 88 (41514) (1,305) (815)
At 3| March 2010 —E-ZF=A=+—H 1,569 1,569
Amounts written off during the year resulted from the liquidation FER BEBENELREXEEN
of the relevant clubs and is included in “other net income/(loss)” in BEECEEAREMSE Mz E
the consolidated income statement. EEmAEERRIHMBA (BE)

TR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 7% ¥ 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T-TE=A=T-ALTE LUETH)

17 GOODWILL e 7. B,
The Group
rEH
$°000
Fr
Cost: AR
At | April 2008, 31 March 2009, R-ZBENFNA—B ' ZFEFERF=ZA=+—1H"
I April 2009 and 31 March 2010 —EENFHNA-HR=ZE-ZEF=ZA=t+—H 2,177
Accumulated amortisation and EFtBERBEES
impairment losses:
At | April 2008, 31 March 2009, REZZBENFNE—B  ZEFAF=A=+—8H"
I April 2009 and 31 March 2010 —EEANFNBE-BR=-ZE-ZEF=A=+—H 2,177
Carrying amount: RESHE:
At | April 2008, 31 March 2009, RZZEZENFNA—B ZEEAF=A=+—H"
I April 2009 and 31 March 2010 —EEZNFHNA-BR=_ZF-ZF=ZHA=+—H -

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The Company

P NN
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EEAF
$’000 $’000
SEoE FIT
Unlisted investments, at cost FELEHRE B 32,245 32,245
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR B B D B IE 87,221 109,335
119,466 141,580
Less: impairment loss R EEE (27,582) (6,500)
91,884 135,080

Balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and not

expected to be recoverable within one year from the balance sheet

date.

MBARMRRERREEMR  T%
FERFEHREER - FRAFTERE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
18. MB A REE (&)

HAKEXRE BEIREBEAY
B2IEMBRARZHROT - KRS
BHEBI  IEEZROHEAEBRR -

The particulars of subsidiaries which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group are as follows. The class of shares

held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Place of

incorporation/

Issued and

paid up share

Percentage of

equity held by

establishment capital/registered the the
Name of company and operation capital Group  Company Principal activity
3o ERTRARE FERETES

DRERE RB&HE REx/ERER FEE LN TEER

Whampoa Textile Limited Hong Kong HK$25,000,000 100 100 Investment holding

ERIHBERLT 5B REZR

Hong Kong Knitters Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Garment

ERBEERAR gB# manufacturing and

investment holding

HREER

REER

Easeley Knitwear Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 - Garment

RIS BB AR D & B8 manufacturing

RRESE

Exquisite Knitters (Guangzhou) The PRC HK$75,600,000 100 - Knitting and dyeing

Limited® H of fabrics and

SHBE (BM) BRARE manufacturing

of garments

TEBE - R

R AEE

Whampoa Garment The PRC HK$17,800,000 100 - Garment

Manufacturing (Guangzhou) s manufacturing

Co., Ltd* RAERIE
ERIRK (BMN) BRAR"

Guangzhou Top Yield The PRC HK$6,000,000 100 - Garment

Garment Limited* H manufacturing

BMNERERERA

RS
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18, INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) ... . 18. WEAREE (M) ...
Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation/ paid up share equity held by
establishment capital/registered the the
Name of company and operation capital Group  Company Principal activity
R, ERTRERE BERAEOML
NREAR RBEHE BE&,EMEE r&H ARH TEEHR
Lavender Garment Limited Bangladesh Taka35,511,050 69 - Garment
=) 1o manufacturing
PR SE
Vestis Limited United Kingdom GBP2 100 100 Garment wholesaling
®E BACH B
# These companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in # ZELNRANPERIZEANEED
the PRC. E
19. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATE e 19. BEQRERE
The Group
AEH
2010 2009
—B-8F -ZThF
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Share of net assets EhREEEE 6,997 6,586
Less: impairment loss o OREEE (6,997) -
- 6,586
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RHILFE (L&)

19. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATE (continued) .. . . 19. MEQRE= () ...
(a) The particulars of the associate, which is an unlisted () HAKEBXEREEFEAZE
corporate entity, which principally affected the results or ZEIEBEQNRN(B—XKFLD

assets of the Group is as follows: EART) ZFHBWOT ¢

Percentage of ownership

Place of interest held by
establishment the the
Name of company and operation Group Company Principal activity
B3 BEREBEDL
NRER R E KEME ENNS TEEH
Qinghai Changchun The PRC 25 - Production and
Carbon Co., Ltd. FE distribution of carbon used
EBREREBRLT in aluminium production
ERAREERNEE -
HEN R
The associate is a sino-foreign equity joint venture established HEARANPERLZPINEG
in the PRC. EREdE-
(b) Summary financial information on an associate (b) HEATUBERBE
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Profit
BE afE R A g
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr FT Fr Fr
2010 —2-FF
100 per cent BOZ—H 76,990 (49,000) 27,990 84,048 5,225
Group’s effective REEERER
interest 19,247 (12,250) 6,997 21,012 1,306
2009 =
100 per cent BOZ—H 77,263 (50,918) 26,345 168,402 5,434
Group’s effective AEBERER
interest 19,316 (12,730) 6,586 47,102 1,151
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RHILFE (L&)

O)

(d

Gain on disposal of associate

On 28 November 2008, the Group entered into an equity
exchange agreement with Travelite Holdings Limited
(“Travelite”) to dispose of the Group’s entire equity
interest of 49% in Yangtzekiang Industries Sdn. Bhd., for an
aggregate consideration of Malaysian Ringgit (“RM”) 3,845,000
(equivalent to $8,253,000). Travelite is a company listed on
The Stock Exchange of Singapore. It settled the consideration
by the issuance of 4,239,970 ordinary shares at an issue
price of Singpore Dollars (“SGD”) 0.38 (based on the agreed
exchange rate of RMI.00 to SGDO0.419), representing 4.8%
of the enlarged share capital of Travelite. A gain on disposal
of associate amounting to $4,684,000 was recognised in
the consolidated income statement during the year ended
31 March 2009. The investment in Travelite is classified as

available-for-sale equity securities (note 21).

Impairment losses on interest in associate and
dividend receeivable from aasociate

The majority of the sales of the associate is made to a
single aluminium producer based in the PRC. This aluminium
producer ceased operations in June 2010 due to the
restructuring of the aluminium industry in accordance with
the policy of the PRC government. The future prospect
of the associate is highly uncertain given the lack of new
customers and ability to continue to operate. The Directors
of the Group are in the opinion that it is unlikely that the
associate will generate earnings or distribute dividends in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, an impairment loss on the
interest in associate amounting to $6,997,000, together with
the dividend receivable from the associate of $917,000 was
made in the financial statements for the year ended 31 March

2010.

()

(d)

kLR K A B A&

19. BENBER (H

HERE QAR KR
RZZEENF+-RAZTAN
H » A% B ETravelite Holdings
Limited ([ Travelite J) 8] 32 BR
BXBHE HEBE QR
Yangtzekiang Industries Sdn. Bhd.
2 EEA9%RE 3R FTravelite *
X 18 %23,845,00055 2 7 22 7T (48
£ 748,253,0007T) © Travelite®
—BERFEMERSZXEMLED
Z DT EPBE1T4,239,970
BBER  BRBITER3ISEM
Bz FARESR (&
BATEXIFRTEE T H0.419
T e BEFE) BER
Travelited I AR X & 2 4. 8 %I%
-BEZZZTNF=ZA=1—
BLEFER HEBRE QAT WS
4,684,000t EERIE KR PHER
RTraveliteZ REC WO B AT
HEERERS (MaE21) -

HENEERREREE QTR
BZREESE
HERNRETER—RRPERK L
ZIEEEBHEER  HRER
R $7 8 T 2£ 78 4k R 7 B B B R
METHE  ZREEBFIN=
E-ZEFRAFLEE -BED
AHRRZHFNEFREEER
HEERE  SHRRNARE
ETHB AEBEERR W
& A B 1E AT 7B R MY R SRS R AT A
BRI AR D IR E - it - B
&0 E R R E BT 186,997,0007T
R EWE = A RKREI7,000TE
FABRE=E-ZEF=A=+-—
BLEFERBR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

....... BN T TS e e e e
The Group The Company
r£E ¥ N
2010 2009 2010 2009
“Z2-ZF CZZTHhFE C-T-TF C"—TEAF
$°000 $2000 $°000 $2000
Fr F Fr F
Unlisted shares, at cost ¥LEHRMD  BERE - - 230,818 230,818
Share of net assets EREEFE 513,133 477224 = -
513,133 477,224 230,818 230,818

Details of the Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are as

AEEREE QA EE 2ERFI W
follows: T :

Percentage of ownership

Place of interest held by
establishment the the
Name of company and operation Group Company Principal activity
& 3L BRERAEDL

NEEW REE R EH ERTE TEXH
Wouxi No. | Cotton Investment Co., Ltd. The PRC 49 49 Investment holding

(formerly known as “Wuxi Talak HE] REZR

Investment Co., Ltd.”)
BHE-RREBRAF

(3178 ESRBREARAF] )

Taizhou Changxin Textile The PRC 49 - Manufacturing of

(Xinghua) Co., Ltd.* FE textile products
FMEFHS (H{) BROA* HEmEE
Allied Textiles Limited* The PRC 49 - Manufacturing of
FHEGHER DT HE garments and textiles
Wauxi Changxin Textile Co., Ltd.* The PRC 49 - Manufacturing of yarns
BHRIHEBERD T HEl and fabrics
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BEZZE-ZF=A=+—HILFE (KET)
20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 20. S DRI (F)

Percentage of ownership

Place of interest held by
establishment the the
Name of company and operation Group Company Principal activity
5V RERABEDL
NCIEE KRB B rEE SN TEXH
Wauxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd.* The PRC 49 - Manufacture and
BHERIBEHBERA T FE sale of textiles
HERHES A @
Wauxi Yangtzekiang Textile Co., Ltd.* The PRC 49 - Manufacture and
BHEFLIEEHBERA A HE sale of textiles
HEREEH AR
Dongtai NAA Textiles Co., Ltd.* The PRC 49 - Manufacturing of
RANRHBERDE* HEl garments and textiles
AR 4 i s
*  Wholly owned subsidiaries of Wuxi No. | Cotton Investment Co., Ltd. * B RBREBRAGAIZEZEREEGN
BE
All of the jointly controlled entities are sino-foreign equity joint FIESEAREERBBEKIMLZF I
ventures established in the PRC. CEREDHEo
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

Summary financial information on the jointly controlled

entities — Group’s effective interest:

EERTANBERME-—FAEEER
e

2010 2009

—E-ZF —EEhF

$°000 $000

Fr Fr

Non-current assets ERBEE 687,627 708,475
Current assets RBEE 352,542 280,692
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (62,253) (114,963)
Current liabilities REBEE (464,783) (396,980)
Net assets EEFHE 513,133 477,224
Income N 661,206 471,724
Expenses X (626,969) (433,531)
Profit for the year REEEF 34,237 38,193

During the year ended 3| March 2008, the Group’s 49% owned
jointly controlled entity, Wuxi No. | Cotton Investment Co., Ltd.,
and two of its wholly owned subsidiaries, namely Wuxi Changxin
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (dissolved during the year ended 31 March
2009) and Wuxi Changxin Textile Co., Ltd. (collectively the “Wuxi
Group”) received compensation income of RMB424,000,000
(equivalent to $470,131,000) for vacating certain plots of land
occupied by the Wuxi Group of which RMB412,000,000 (equivalent
to $452,826,000) was recognised as income in its income statement
for the year ended 31 March 2008 as it fulfilled the required

obligations as set out in the compensation agreement.

BE-ZZ\F=ZA=+—-HLEE
N AEEEEAS 2T+ AREZ
EELNR BB -MREFRLA
REMBZENBEAR EAESGR
HEXERAR (REBE-ZTENEF
ZAZT-BLFEEREHEMBE R
BERFHBERLR (KBRS
EBDHWHR-—ZEHETVRABAR
#5424,000,0007T (16 % 7470,131,000
L) AU BESGSEEMGEEZE
Ltihe AREEBITHEESHNPNE
£ ZEREH ARHE412,000,0007T
(155 1452,826,0007T) B Rir & B &
RABRBBA -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 20.

The Wuxi Group also recognised impairment losses on buildings,
and plant and machinery situated on the land of approximately
RMB183,000,000 (equivalent to $202,910,000) during the
year ended 31 March 2008. The compensation income, net of
impairment losses recognised during the year ended 3| March
2008, and other losses and relocation expenses incurred as a result
of vacating the land occupied by the Wuxi Group, contributed
approximately RMB133,000,000 (equivalent to $147,470,000) to the
net profit of the Wuxi Group.

The remaining RMB12,000,000 (equivalent to $13,306,000)
and an additional amount of RMB88,000,000 (equivalent to
$97,574,000) were received during the year ended 31 March 2009.
Accordingly, compensation income of RMB100,000,000 (equivalent
to $113,340,000) was recognised as income by Wuxi Group
during the year ended 3| March 2009 as Wuxi Group fulfilled the

obligations as set out in the compensation agreement.

During the year ended 3| March 2010, the Wuxi Group received
further compensation amounting to RMB27,000,000 (equivalent
to $30,699,000) in cash which was recognised in the consolidated

income statement for the year ended 3| March 2010.

BE-ZEN\F=ZA=1+—HBL*HF
ER BEEETCHEIEE L
E2ZEY BMERBKSEZRER
B 5 AR®183,000,0005T (FHER
202,910,000T) - BE=-ZFZENF=A
E+—BLFER FRERIANEES
WAHBRBESE REZERGE
EEEIHmBENEtEERES
ER ERMESEEEANEOARY
133,000,000 (FHZ5 14 147,470,0007T) ©

BT AR#12,000,0005T (HZER
13,306,000) R 5 —$¥2BARY
88,000,0007T (#H % 7497,574,0007T)
ZHESERBEZE-_ZZTNE=A
ET—HLEFERKER - Et E&
GEECETARBESHNRMITZ
BT WE WA AR %100,000,0007T
(FEZH113,340,0000T) EREBE=Z
ENF=ZA=Z+—HLEFERKES
SEEEIZBBA °

BE-_Z-ZF=HA=+—-BILEE
A BESEEBRNN-—EReHES
AR #27,000,0007T (#8255430,699,000
T)RZRIE c ZERECREBE-_Z—
EFEZA=t—-HALFEANRGEE
BERANWER
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21. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

21, HtsmEE

The Group and the Company

AEBRAEARAT
2010 2009
—2-%F -FIThE
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Available-for-sale equity securities: AR HERERES
— Unlisted, at cost -kt 855 855
— Listed outside Hong Kong, —BEUMLET
at market value WA 4910 4,409
5,765 5,264
Loans receivable FEU & 55 722
5,820 5,986

The Group and the Company

Fair value of individually impaired

available-for-sale equity securities

18 B RAE 2 7 it H E IR E R 5
ZAVEE

AEERAERQT

2010 2009
—2-%8% C-2ThE

$°000 $000

Fr Fr

4,591 4,209

(a) As at 31 March 2009, the Group’s and the Company’s ()

available-for-sale equity securities were individually

determined to be impaired on the basis of a material decline

in their fair values below cost and adverse changes in the

market in which these investees operated which indicated that

the cost of the Group’s and the Company’s investments in

them may not be recovered.

Impairment loss on these investments were recognised in the

consolidated income statement in accordance with the policy

set out in note |(k)(i) (see note 4).

R-ZEBZEAF=ZA=+—AHLEF
ER - AEERARDEEER A
MEECREERZRAEELR
B EREAFEERBERK
AEEBRENTHSERIAANE
B FUAKRERADBNRZER
BEWRARKRSEEEURE o

B % 15 2 0 A 0 I
() ()T 3 10 0 2 98 2 5 o HE 3R
(BBIMEA) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-T-TE=A=T-ALTE LUETH)

(b) At 31 March 2010, the loans receivable were repayable as

follows:

R W R A5 B A 49
tinued) . 2. HitemMEEME) ...
b) R=ZE—ZFF=A=+—-B8 &

WERZEBRBANOT :

The Group and the Company

AEERARRQT
2010 2009
—2-25 -TINE
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Within | year (note 23) —F R (Hit23) 667 821
After | year but within 2 years —FREMER 55 667
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERLFR - 55
55 722
722 1,543

As at 3| March 2010, the loans receivable represent the
carrying amount of a loan receivable from (i) a supplier of
the Group amounting to $722,000 (2009: $1,389,000); and
(ii) Yangtzekiang S.A. (“YSA”) amounting to $Nil (2009:
$154,000).

The loan receivable from a supplier as at 31 March 2010
amounting to $722,000 (2009: $1,389,000) is unsecured
and interest-bearing at 6.5% (2009: 6.5%) per annum on the
principal outstanding. The loan is repayable in 36 monthly
equal instalments with the final instalment maturing in April
2011.

The loan receivable from YSA, a former related party, was
unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed terms of repayment
as at 31 March 2009.

R-ZE-ZFF=HF=+—H"
EWEREEBEERE()—HER
BT R 7S £ B 2 FE UL B FX722,000
T (ZZEZhF :1,389,0007T) ;
R (ii) Yangtzekiang S.A. (['YSA])
RHHBE(ZZEENF 1 154,000
JT) e

R-—ZZT—ZHF=ZA=+—H
—XEEEMRA2ERER
#KE722,000T (Z BT S F ¢
1,389,0007T) @ WREIWMRUF
MZEeS5% (ZBENEF : 6.5%) 7t
ERE - ERED H36HEE
WHR=—ZE——FNBEARKE—H
BiE -

R-ZBEAF=ZA=1+—-H ">
YSACBER-—BEAL)RZ
RUEFREET  TEFER
REBEEERY -
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BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RHILFE (L&)

22, INVENTORIES i, 22 BE
(a) Inventories in the balance sheet comprise: (a) FEREESGEXREHE
The Group The Company
3 AR
2010 2009 2010 2009
ZE-25 CZEBZNE ZEB-BF ZEZEENE
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Raw materials [t 8,324 34,593 689 1,773
Work in progress M 61,593 77,360 21,009 33,780
Finished goods H R 20,499 35,745 1,830 3,293
90,416 147,698 23,528 38,846
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised (b) FEEEIEZHREEERR
as an expense and included in profit or loss is as AT :
follows:
The Group
AL
2010 2009
—-BF C—IINF
$°000 $°000
F7T FI
Carrying amount of inventories sold GFEHERAEE 1,089,858 1,317,986
Write down of inventories FE MR 10,134 6,575
Reversal of write-down of inventories FE MR E (3,872) (1,291)
1,096,120 1,323,270

The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior years
arose due to an increase in the net realisable value of garment
products by reference to sales made subsequent to the year

end.

BAEFEZFEMREER - T3]
BRRKERREFENNHEHE
BYRSERNMAFTERFE
BINFRER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RHILFE (L&)
23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

A

A W

23. FE W IR H At B WK

The Group The Company
A%EH e
2010 2009 2010 2009
—B-2% C"ZTTNF ZB-BF CITNF
$°000 $000 $°000 $°000
FI Fr Fr Fr
Non-current FnE
Dividend receivable from a BREEQARARE
jointly controlled entity - 28,678 - -
Current Vi
Trade debtors FE W BRK 101,936 105,137 20,134 36,135
Bills receivable EYRE 48,327 54,659 27,519 42,404
Less: allowance for B RRERBE
doubtful debts (8,955) (5,933) (265) (201)
141,308 153,863 47,388 78,338
Loans receivable (note 21(b)) FEWE K (H7221 (b)) 667 821 667 821
Deposits, prepayments and FRAARK
other debtors H b FE WL 22,821 16,434 5,680 5,721
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEWF B A B 1B - - 157,565 122,210
Amounts due from related FEWRERE A R FRIE
companies 3,020 2,119 289 163
Amounts due from jointly EREENRRE
controlled entities 1,351 1,027 - -
Amount due from a shareholder W —RRHE
— Chan Family Investment - Chan Family Investment
Corporation Limied Corporation Limied - - 208 -
Dividend receivable from EUHE AT RE
associate - 1,549 - -
Dividend receivable from a BREEARRE
jointly controlled entity 28,772 - - -
197,939 175,813 211,797 207,253

As at 31 March 2009, bills receivable of the Group and the
Company amounting to $44,420,000 and $34,669,000 were pledged
to secure bank loans of $44,420,000 and $34,669,000, respectively
(note 27).

RZZBENF=ZA=+—H £®&H
& 75 A\ T #544,420,0007T 34,669,000
7T 2 B 1R 5 Bl % 3% #944,420,000
70 1234,669,0007T (FfEE27) ZERITER
ER-
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T—TE= A=+ —BILFE LETEH)

All of the Group’s and the Company’s trade and other receivables
are expected to be recovered or recognised as an expense within

one year.

Dividend receivable from a jointly controlled entity of the Group
amounting to RMB25,294,000 (equivalent to $28,772,000) as at 31|
March 2010 (2009: $28,678,000) represents a dividend declared
by Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi YGM Textile”), a former
subsidiary of the Group in 2005. Due to financial covenants
restricting the distribution of dividends by Wuxi YGM Textile, the
dividends declared by Wuxi YGM Textile as discussed above could
only be paid to the Group when the related bank loans of Wuxi
YGM Textile matured in 2009.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the bank loans drawn down
by Wuxi YGM Textile had been repaid and thus the restriction on

dividend payments has removed.

During the year ended 3| March 2010, based on discussions with
the management of Wuxi YGM Textile, the directors of the Group
consider that the dividend receivable from Wuxi YGM Textile will
be received within one year. Accordingly, the dividend receivable
of RMB25,294,000 (equivalent to $28,772,000) is classified as a

current asset as at 31 March 2010.

The amounts due from subsidiaries, related companies, associates
and jointly controlled entities are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

23, EWERE

%% H fth B WL K ()

REBERADTRERBIRR R H M
EUREGEMR - FARDRERS
X e

RZBE-ZF=A=+—-H8 EWKAEH
TEEEE A EIRE ARY25,294,000
(¥ 1428,772,0007T) (Z B Z h 5 :
28,678,0007T) AAKBE BT ZHE A
A-BERIBEHBAERAR (&
RIBEHBIR_SZTEFERZ

BRE -ARESRIBRHEBRED
IRZRMERAMEB > REMXEARZ
EENFEERBRTEEIHEA T
At o

BE-ZZhAhE=ZA=+—RHLEE
RN EBSRIBEHBORTEEN
AREHWEEZ REIFTHRHERK
HUH

BE-_Z-ZF=A=+—HL#HF
ER REESHRIBEHEN
woAKRBESAREZGRIBE
HHENERREKA -FREE -
At R=ZFE-ZFF=ZA=+—-H
FE U IR B A R #525,294,0007T (FZ R
28,772,0007T) A EAREBEE

EWHEBAR BELT BEEQH
RELEDARRERRIEEE  T%R
B WEHERBHMAGEER
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RE-F—FHE=A=+—BILEE (KETH)

(a) Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors and
bills receivable (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with the

following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date:

(a) FRERDHT
REEBEFEERBRR R EM
FEWERARE LT BRE 5 4T 2 UL
RRREKEE (SHKRRER

) -
The Group The Company
rEE b N
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-Z2F ZEZENF ZB-BF CZZEINF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Current RiBE 115,949 126,748 41,879 69,758
Less than 61 days past due BEL 6B 19,637 22,985 5,206 7,869
61 to 90 days past due #Hel Z90H 2,830 2,056 29 8l
More than 90 days past due BH90RA MU £ 2,892 2,074 274 630
Amounts past due AHEE 25,359 27,115 5,509 8,580
141,308 153,863 47,388 78,338
Trade debtors and bills receivable are due between 30 to 90 EWERRKEEKREEERERS

days from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s

credit policy are set out in note 32(a).

#%30290H A EIH - KREBHE
EREMNE-—SHBHNRMT
32(a) ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RHILFE (L&)

(b)

Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable (b) EUWERIREKWEZERE
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills PEWERRREREE ZRHES
receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless B AEASRIANEBHERYD -
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, FRIEAEBAEGE B B KEZRIE
in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade HI AT RE MR IR - BREMREEE
debtors and bills receivable directly (see note | (k)(i)). BEHEREWRIREKREZES
e (S RME90) °
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the FARBERENE D (BEE
year, including both specific and collective loss components, is ARABEEDRMG AT :
as follows:
The Group The Company
XEE AN
2010 2009 2010 2009
“2-2F CZEZZNE ZEB-BF CZEZEZTNE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $000
Fr F Fr F
At | April REE—H 5,933 2,324 201 381
Impairment loss recognised/ REBEZER/
(reversed) (note 5(c)) (@) (M725(c)) 3,022 3,609 64 (180)
At 31 March W=B=+-8 8,955 5,933 265 201

At 31 March 2010, the Group’s and the Company’s trade
debtors and bills receivable of $8,959,000 (2009: $5,993,000)
and $265,000 (2009: $259,000) respectively were individually
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired
receivables related to customers that were in financial
difficulties and management assessed that only a portion of
the receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently,
specific allowances for doubtful debts of $8,955,000 (2009:
$5,933,000) and $265,000 (2009: $201,000) respectively were
recognised. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.

R-ZE-ZTF=F=+—-H"
REB R AR DE 5 B #8,959,000
T(ZZZENF ©5993,0000T) &
265,0007T (= ZZ AL 1 259,000
7)) 2 FE U BR R I FE UK R AR R B
RIEEAHREE ZEERNHE
BRMBRECEFER mMERE
BREAERETREZEER
Mz—BH o Bt BWER

1 Bl 3R 28 BR #5155l 238,955,000
T (ZZEZFNF :5933,000T) &
265,0007T (ZZZ AL 1 201,000
TT) o AEBUWEBZSEREE
R o
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RHILFE (L&)

23, BWRA R EMEWR (F

(c) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not (c) MRBEZERERREREE
impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that I KB Bl =kt B 3R AR RE 2 FE
are neither individually nor collectively considered to be RN BN ZIERERDTAOT -
impaired are as follows:
The Group The Company
BN 27
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F C—ZTTHhF ZE-2F C"ITTNF
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Neither past due nor impaired b 5 8 A SR B 115,945 126,724 41,879 69,730
Less than 61 days past due BEDR6IR 19,637 22,977 5,206 7,861
61 to 90 days past due BH6I 2908 2,830 2,028 29 53
More than 90 days past due BH90RA MU £ 2,892 2,074 274 636
25,359 27,079 5,509 8,550
141,304 153,803 47,388 78,280
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate 1042 8 B SR B 2 FE IR BR SR EE R
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent SWEABMRFGHE T FPEEA -
history of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate BHEBE Y R EZ ERERERES
to a number of independent customers that have a good EBEBUEFER ZEEFHAK
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, SENEERERY - RIBBAE
management believes that no impairment allowance is K BEERR ZEEHE
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been ARERE BRAGEEZLE
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still BEARBE  BASKNERETR
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any HumE o AEE Y ERZEEER
collateral over these balances. BFEEMERR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T-TE=A=T-ALTE LUETH)

24. PLEDGED DEPOSITS | . . ..., 2 BEER
The Group
REH

2010 2009

—®-%F —TBhE

$°000 $°000

Fr Fr

Pledged deposits with banks IRITIKRER - 9,070
At 31 March 2009, deposits with banks were pledged to banks as R-ZEBEZENFE=ZB=+—H ' &ETR
security for bills payable of $9,070,000 (note 26). TERERFERT EAENEE

9,070,0007T 2 3K # (B 5k26) ©

25, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS . 25 BRERZESFEY........
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a BEeRBELZEYEE:
The Group The Company
AEHE VNG|

2010 2009 2010 2009

ZE-25 CZERZNE ZEB-BF ZEZEZNE

$°000 $000 $°000 $000

F Fr F Fr

Cash at bank and in hand ROEHERRRE 184,770 116,153 87,179 38,945
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-T—TF=A=+—AILER (LUETH)
25. e RBESEEBY (A

(b) BRBAGEFEKEXEBKHIERS

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash

generated from operations:

ZH R :

2010 2009
—E-%2F ZEENE
Note $°000 $°000
V=3 F F
Profit before taxation BRBE AR A 123,732 75,614
Adjustments for: A
~ Dividends income from unlisted equity - kLETRERSZ
securities REWA 4 (422) (415)
~ Interest income -FIEKA 4 (1,041) (1,192)
- Write-off of intangible assets -BREERY 4 1,305 -
— Impairment loss on available-for-sale -AtHEREERES 2
equity securities BEERE 4 - 4,044
— Loss/(gain) on disposals of plant and -HERERBEREM
machinery and other fixed assets BEEEFR/ (k&) 4 380 (42)
- Finance costs -RERK 5(a) 5,634 9,238
- Amortisation of land lease premium -HETHFIEHE 5(c) 70 70
— Depreciation e 5(c) 24,495 25,354
~ Impairment loss on trade and other - RURR R E A B
receivables ZREEE 5(c) 3,022 3,609
— Impairment loss on dividends -ERRERESE
receivable 5(c) - 1,478
~ Share of profits less losses of - E A RENHEER
associates 19(b) (1,306) (1,151)
— Share of profits less losses of jointly -EHEEERRRNHEE
controlled entities 20 (34,237) (38,193)
- Gain on disposal of associate - HEBE N AhE 19(c) - (4,684)
- Impairment losses on interest in -BEARERREREE QT
associate and dividend receivable REZREEE
from associate 19(d) 1,914 -
— Impairment loss on fixed assets -EREERERE 14(f) 21,014 -
— Gain on disposals of land and buildings -~HETHREFREE
and investment properties MEWRE 6 (81,133) -
— Net valuation (gains)/losses on - REMESM WR)/
investment properties BEEE 14(a) (20,915) 7,845
— Foreign exchange (gain)/losses -EX (W) /BB (1,087) 2,641
Operating profit before changes in REEREHA 2
working capital carried forward ReRNEETE 47,425 84,216
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BE-F-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) = 25 BERBESFEY M) . .
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRBEABANHELEEKFRBRS
generated from operations: (continued) ZH R ()
2010 2009
—2-2% = LK
Note $°000 $°000
V=3 Fr Fr
Operating profit before changes in REBEREBA 2
working capital brought forward RERANAZLE 47,425 84,216
Changes in working capital: EEESRE .
— Decrease in inventories -FERY 57,282 14,416
— Decrease in trade debtors - BRI A 3,201 41,771
- Decrease in bills receivable -EREERD 6,332 20,139
— (Increase)/decrease in deposits, -FHC BARREMER
prepayments and other debtors BB (Em) HD (6,387) 9,478
— (Increase)/decrease in amounts -BWEEARNE
due from related companies (®m) /wd (901) 4,333
— Increase in amounts due from jointly -EWEEATFREEM
controlled entities (324) (1,027)
— Decrease in trade creditors - B RMED (11,575) (56,324)
— (Decrease)/increase in bills payable -EREE D) /B (14,867) 9,363
— Decrease in accrued charges and -EHERAREMES
other creditors BRFOR S (6,234) (31,822)
— (Decrease)/increase in amounts -EREEARNE
due to related companies (B2) /Em (4,164) 882
— Increase/(decrease) in amounts due -EfeEDRRE
to jointly controlled entities Bm/ (F) 94 (7,684)
— Increase/(decrease) in amount due -BR-RRRE
to a shareholder #mn,/ i) 343 (1,530
— (Decrease)/increase in provision for -RERBELEE
long service payments (H2) /% (8,581) 8,332
Cash generated from operations REEBmMERE 61,644 94,543
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES . ... 26 BNERIRAEMECSK
The Group The Company
&M 27
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F C—ZTTHhFE CZE-2F C"ITTNF
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Trade creditors B £ BR X 88,695 100,270 40,753 60,530
Bills payable BREE 3,387 18,254 2,567 5,606
92,082 118,524 43,320 66,136
Accrued charges and other EstERAREMEMAR
creditors 70,077 76,311 19,337 23,390
Amounts due to related ENBEQTHIE
companies 427 4,591 396 -
Amounts due to jointly BNEERRFTE
controlled entities 96 2 13 371
Amount due to a shareholder B —RRME
— Chan Family Investment —Chan Family Investment
Corporation Limited Corporation Limited 2,139 1,796 - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEF B B 2 B0 IE - - 13,157 27,271
164,821 201,224 76,223 117,168
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or P FE A BR AR I EL b FE A SRR TR ER G R
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand. —FREEIRABBARFTRBEL

BV BF {32 ©

The amounts due to subsidiaries, related companies, jointly ENHEBAR -BEAT 58 QH

controlled entities and a shareholder are unsecured, interest-free R—BERELRZBER - THFFE

and repayable on demand. RERBANEEE -

At 31 March 2009, bills payable of the Group amounting to RZZBENF=ZRA=+—H £&H

$9,070,000 were secured by pledged deposits of the Group Z FEf+ E 159,070,000t 2R AR EEH =2

amounting to $9,070,000 (note 24). 3K # 17 709,070,0007T 1 3K #8 (Fff 5%
24) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T-TE=A=T-ALTE CUETH)

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) = 26, BIRAREMELAR A .
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors and bills REEHERERENRAKREMERS
payable with the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet RAEBUTHRED M ZENLIRAKE
date: HEE:

The Group The Company

KX K07

2010 2009 2010 2009
—2-2F C"RENF ZT-BF C"IBAF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
F Fr Fr Fr
Current R 65,987 85,843 39,894 45,571
Less than 61 days past due BEL 6B 21,078 28,383 3,167 19,842
61 to 90 days past due Bl BE90R 3,488 1,971 I 228
More than 90 days past due BHI90H LA £ IF529 2,327 248 495
Amounts past due panp:i e 26,095 32,681 3,426 20,565
92,082 118,524 43,320 66,136

ANNUAL REPORT 09/10 FEF R



YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

kL R K FH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 5 ¥ 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RE-T—TF=A=+—AILER (LUETH)
27. BANK LOANS

B

27. BITER

At 31 March 2010, all bank loans were repayable within | year or

on demand and were secured as follows:

R-ZE-ZF=ZF=+—HB AR
TERYBR—FARNREREE
RITEREFEBROT :

The Group The Company
r&EE AAF
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-Z2F C—ZTEZNF ZE-TE C—TINF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr FT Fr
Bank loans RITER

— secured -FER - 44,420 - 34,669
— unsecured — I - 40,000 - 40,000
- 84,420 - 74,669

As at 31 March 2009, bank loans of the Group and the Company
amounting to $44,420,000 and $34,669,000 were secured by
bills receivable of the Group and the Company amounting to
$44,420,000 and $34,669,000 respectively (see note 23).

All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to the Group’s net asset position, as are
commonly found in lending arrangements with financial institutions.
If the Group were to breach the covenants, the drawn down
facilities would become payable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further details of
the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note 32(b).
As at 31 March 2009 none of the covenants relating to drawn down

facilities had been breached.

7 2 Bl LL44,420,000
Tt} 34,669,000t 2 EREEE S
44,420,0007T }2.34,669,0007T Z R 1T &
IR (S BMTE23) ©

FEBEZEHRTEEANE —HE
REBCEEFERRNER 2R
EREPBEBIVERZHERER
ZRE-MEAEEERBBRES
AIEREREECRNZEER - K
SEEHERAGBTERAZEZE
ReERAAEEEERBESARZ
E-SEBHNMENRD) - BEZE
ENFZA=+-HB AEEARE
ER RN E R -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RHILFE (L&)

28.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

In Hong Kong, the Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The
MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of $20,000. The employer’s

contributions to the MPF scheme vest immediately.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted
ORSO Scheme for those employees who were eligible to
participate in the scheme. This scheme is operated in a way
similar to the MPF scheme, except that when an employee leaves
the scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s employee
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited employer’s
contributions or refunded to the employer. The amount of
employer’s contributions forfeited during the years ended 31 March
2010 and 2009 was immaterial.

The employees of certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC
are members of a state-sponsored retirement scheme organised
by the local government in the PRC. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of payroll, to the
retirement scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to these retirement benefit schemes is to make

the required contributions under the terms of the scheme.

28. EERAKEF

REB FEECRBEFEAES
RGO ARETB(ERERAER
ZEERERHMEATEETE ([BE
@58l cRESTTAARERKE
REtE ABLETEAEE - RIER
Bestd BExRHEESHAEHZT
BREEEE WA Z5%EHHRK -
S AEBEWA Z R A20,0007 ° &
FTREBELTEMELE 2 HRDEREE
==

TEBTACERSHRERFMEARE
CHENBERRHEZEERLZ
& - ZETEINELRESHE A
&g HERENRFTEEKEZEE
BEASEESHARABRE  #Rkz
BERIEAERKER R ZZMHX
RERERFT R-ZT-FTR=-FTTH
FZA=+t—HEERRIWZEE
MRZEEBEBRAK -

EHRESER  AEEHXMBELR 2
BEDTHEEBRFES B IHS
BEERBIECKRE - ZEHELT
ARRBEEIE A THDLEHRK
PRI - AE BB KET BT AE
ZHE—BERINZEBIRE MK -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T-TE=A=T-ALTE LUETH)

29. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET .= 29 BEESERATHASER . ..
(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents: (a) EEEBRAITHERBFAESRR:
The Group The Company
BN ARF

2010 2009 2010 2009

—E-2F C"EEThE ZT-BF C"IZEANF

$°000 $000 $°000 $000

Fr T Fr T

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax ~ AFEFBREH

for the year £ 5,927 12,179 5,734 5015
Provisional Profits Tax paid EREHFEHR (5,729) (6,628) (3,414) (5,054)
198 5,551 2,320 (39)
Balance of Profits Tax provision BAFEFSHER
relating to prior years &Eeh - 2,712 - 2,740
198 8,263 2,320 2,701
Provision of tax outside Hong Kong BB R IMNEHBEE 14,622 300 14,373 -
Net tax payable ERHEFE 14,820 8,563 16,693 2,701
Representing: K&
Current tax recoverable AHEBEAHBIE (2,311) (242) - -
Current tax payable AR 8 17,131 8,805 16,693 2,701
14,820 8,563 16,693 2,701
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-T—THE=A=+—HILFRE (WET)

29. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 29. EERERMTANFAESR (&
....... CONLNUED) e crsrirees et
(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (b) ERIBELHEBH (BE) &
&F:
()  The Group (i) FEH
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities EEREEEABRERY
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the BEEFFER (BE) Af
movements during the year are as follows: WA DMAREESE M
T :
Depreciation
allowances Undistributed
Revaluation Revaluation in excess of Provision for  profits of jointy
Future benefit  of investment of land and the related ~ Provision for long service controlled
of tax losses properties buildings depreciation inventories payments entities Total
HEfE,  REEBRE R8T FERRERR RERES RELF
AR NEER Eff REFEZRE FEER R RARER &
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i i i i i i i i

Deferred tox aising from: K& PR BHECHATE

At | April 2008 R-2RN\FRA-H - 15914 3818 1332 (46) (5.225) - 15793
Exchange adjustments EjEE - 9l - - ] (118) - )
Credited to the consolidated  EREEHRE A

income statement 1m) (497) - (115) (3,709) (1,003) - (8,097
At 31 March 2009 RZBZNFZR=T-A om) 15,508 3818 1207 3,77 (6,346) - 7,667
At | April 2009 RZBENEMA-A m) 15,508 3818 1207 (3.757) (6.346) - 74667
Exchange adjustments EngE ®) 18 - 0 13) )] - o)

Chargedi(credited) to REARRENE/(HA)

the consolidated

income statement 2697 1673 - (13 (1.9%9) 1,307 5657 208
Credited to reserves EREHA - - (31¢) - - - - (31¢)
At 31 March 2010 H=B-%3£=/=+-8 (84 17,199 3,502 (6,018) (5,709) (5,060) 5,657 9,487
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T-TE=A=T-ALTE LUETH)

29. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 29. EEEBRAI TN EH (&)

(b) EWMRELEFRB/H (BE) &
& (&)
(Y-
CEEEEEERBEANEL
Frigsi (&) /BENAER
BOMNAFESLBHOT -

(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (continued)

(i) The Company
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the balance sheet and the movements

during the year are as follows:

Depreciation
allowances
Revaluation Revaluation in excess of

of investment of land and the related

properties buildings depreciation Total
HERBE
REME LtiREF kg
B Bfff WEZHE &%
$000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Deferred tax arising from: KRE THEBER
At | April 2008 RZZTNE
mA—H 16,524 33818 1,179 21,521
Credited to EBHERFA
profit or loss (2,391) - (39) (2,430)
At 31 March 2009 R=ZENE
ZA=+-H 14,133 3,818 1,140 19,091
At | April 2009 RZZEREF
mA—H 14,133 3818 1,140 19,091
Charged/(credited) to HEHR
profit or loss H%,/ (5t A) 3319 - (970) 2,349
Credited to reserves BT A - (316) - (316)
At 31 March 2010 R=Z-%5§
=ZA=1+-H 17,452 3,502 170 21,124
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-T—TF=A=+—AILER (LUETH)
29. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (continued)

(i) Reconciliation to the balance sheet

29. EEEBRIITINEBHR (&
(b) ERBELHEB (BE) &
& (4F)
(i) BEBMEFZHEK

The Group The Company
A %8 AR

2010 2009 2010 2009

“E-ZF C"TERF ZEB-ZTF C"ETHE

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

Fr F Fr Fr
Net deferred tax assets HEEERRERN

recognised in the balance sheet ELEFTBHEEFME (17,301) (7,765) - -
Net deferred tax liabilities FEEBEBEREAN

recognised in the balance sheet EEFEHEEFE 26,788 15,432 21,124 19,091

9,487 7,667 21,124 19,091
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-TF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
29. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note I(r),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses of $26,800,000 (2009: $8,400,000)
attributable to certain subsidiaries as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.
Tax losses amounting to $4,475,000 (2009: $3,675,000) do
not expire under the relevant current tax legislation, while
the remaining tax losses amounting to $22,325,000 (2009:
$4,725,000) incurred by the PRC subsidiaries will expire in

five years after they are incurred as follows:

L /K A R A

29. EERERMTANFAES (&

() RERWELEFRBHREE -

BEMEI() RE@MERRE
F BB 2 7 A& %126,800,0007T (=
ZT T N F : 8,400,0005T) #Y A K
HEERREENELRESHE
B AREEEZHRBEAEEERE
ki ERERMES  EAHEBA
ZEE UK R RERFURR 2
AREMRIE - RIEBEBERTHE
EB 0 B B 18 S $£4,475,000T

—ZEZAE :3,6750007T) A E
[E i o MEERN BT EMEA R
EENBISEES 22,325,000

ZEE N F : 4,725,0007T) #ER

EEHERENEW

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr

Expiring in December: RIT=AlEis -
2009 —EENF - 2,119
2010 —E-FF 534 532
2011 —E——F 336 335
2012 —E-CF 1,622 1,617
2013 —E-=F 123 122
2014 —E-NF 16,756 -
2015 —E-FF 2,954 -
22,325 4,725
No expiry date RERERBH 4,475 3,675
26,800 8,400
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RHILFE (L&)

30.

.PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS = 30. REBRBESER ...
The Group The Company
r&HE ARH

2010 2009 2010 2009
“2-%f CZTTHEFE ZB-FTF CZEIHF
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
At | April REOA—H 33,335 24,531 4,459 2,084
Exchange adjustments ERRE 83 472 - -
Add: Additional provision made i FEREEE M 1,613 8,430 - 2,375
Less: Payments made during the year " FRTR (5,656) (98) - -
Less: Reversal of provision o EERE (4,621) - (1,770) -
At 31 March R=B=+-8 24,754 33,335 2,689 4,459

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group and the
Company are obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation
of employment in certain circumstances to employees who have
completed at least five years of service with the Group and the
Company. The amount payable is dependent on the employees’
final salary and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements
accrued under the retirement schemes of the Group and the
Company that are attributable to contributions made by the Group
and the Company. The Group and the Company do not set aside

any assets to fund the above remaining obligations.

Under the PRC Labour Contract Law, the Group is obliged to
make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to employees. The amount payable is dependent on
the employees’ final salary and years of service. The Group does

not set aside any assets to fund the above remaining obligations.

REFB(ERKD) AEERAEALD
AAEEOREFEERFHIULR
EETEATELZENEEMNE -
ERNEHE - FIXANESELRERE
ENEAFERRBFEMEE - X
MEEEEAREBERADERMAKE S
TR EZTAIREREIQFAFREEZ
FRIE o AL B KA N R I B AE M
EENEMN ERRERHNET -

RE(PESBERE) REREE
BEETERTELZENEENH
—EBNEE - - IXANSELRE
BENBRKFERBRBEFHAMEE -
SEYEBHEMEEURMS LRR
BRI EE ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T-TE=A=T-ALTE LOETH)
31. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

3. RA » AERKRE

(a) EEZERID 2B
NEBGEEERSHRIM 2B
VEMRESRCHREANGERE
mEER o NN A ERERAERK

HORFIRFRZEBFBN

(a) Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each components of the Group’s consolidated equity is set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details

of the changes in the Company’s individual components of

equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set

out below:

T

Land and
Capital Investment buildings
Share Share redemption revaluation revaluation Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
X RE 1HREF
Rx  RGEE RERE ERRE  EfRE  REEN &t
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Wit Fr fr fr r Fr fr Fr
Balance at | April 2008 RZBENFOA-B2&R 105,184 102,753 481 400 20,309 366,528 595,655
Changes in equity for the year: ~ REEE#EH
Dividends approved in respect of AEERIER
the previous year RE-FEHNRE 31 (b)(ii - - - - - (37,866) (37,866)
Dividends declared in respect of AEEEERRE
the current year 31(b)(i) - - - - - (2,104 (2,104)
Total comprehensive income REEREAURER
for the year - - - (358) - 28,502 28,144
Balance at 31 March 2009 RZBBAE
and | April 2009 =ZA=t+-H
R-ZENE
mA—-Rzie 105,184 102,753 481 4 20,309 355,060 583,829
Changes in equity for the year: rEERERE:
Dividends approved in respect of REEARER
the previous year RE-FEHNRE 31 (b)(ii - - - - - (18933) (18933)
Disposal of investment properties LENRERE T
previously transferred from REFZRENE
land and buildings - - - - (3,820 3,820 -
Reversal of deferred tax on HENTERETE
disposal of investment properties REFZRENE
previously transferred from MEEZEL
land and buildings FERAE 29(b)(ii) - - - - 316 - 316
Dividends declared in respect of AEEEERRE
the current year 31(b)(i) - - - - - (2,104) (2,104)
Total comprehensive income rEE2EUELR
for the year - - - 101 - 106,205 106,306
Balance at 31 March 2010 R-2-2%
ZRA=T-H2&H 105,184 102,753 481 143 16,805 444,048 669,414
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-F—THE=A=+—BILFE (WET)

31. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 31. RA& -~ ERRE (&)
....... (ComtinUed) | e e
(b) Dividends (b) BRE
()  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company () BHEXREGRERFEALE

attributable to the year

ERE

2010 2009
—®-%F —TBhE
$°000 $°000
T T
Interim dividend declared and EERRIAFHERE
paid of $0.01 (2009: $0.01) BREBRKROIT
per ordinary share —ZEZENF 1 0.017T) 2,104 2,104
Final dividend proposed after REEABRBIREARD
the balance sheet date of REGREBERR0.O06TT
$0.06 (2009: $0.09) —EZNF 10.097T)
per ordinary share 12,622 18,933
14,726 21,037
The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date REERARERIRENWRE
has not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet REEREEEBEIRAE
date. & e

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company

attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid

(i)

BT R EREFEABR
FHBFE  WREFE

during the year BERZTHEKEE
2010 2009
—®-TF —IEAF
$°000 $000
Fr Fr
Final dividend in respect of BRE—BEREE IR
the previous financial year, AEEZERZARE
approved and paid during R EBREERKR.09T
the year of $0.09 (2009: $0.18) (ZEZAF 1 0.187T)
per ordinary share 18,933 37,866
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-T-TE=A=T-ALTE LUETH)
31. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(d)

31 RAE - RERKE (&

....... CONLNUED) e ccsrnrees e e
(c) Authorised and issued share capital (c) ZEERDHITRA
2010 2009
—E-2F —EEAF
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
R &8 RE &8
’000 $°000 ’000 $000
FE FIT FER Fr
Authorised: EERA
Ordinary shares of $0.50 each SREE0S0T
ZEBR 400,000 200,000 400,000 200,000
Ordinary shares, issued and ERITRERR
fully paid: EER:
At the beginning and the end RENRFR
of the year 210,369 105,184 210,369 105,184
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive EEREEEERNEFESIR
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to HERE  WEEREEARAATRKRE
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary KEEBRER—EWLH2HE
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual NE . AL EREAND TR
assets. BELYZRESER -
Nature and purpose of reserves d) REENEERAR

(i) Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium account and the

capital redemption reserve is governed by sections 48B

and 49H respectively of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

(i)  Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange

differences arising from the translation of the financial

statements of operations outside Hong Kong. The

reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

policies set out in note |(u).

() R EREKXELFE
BROBERERBEEFEN
AEDBZEEB(A K
) EE48B1% |2 S5 49HIR FT &
go

(i) [EZRFE
EXREEEERETEN
MEBZHBREMEEZ
FEERZELE - ZREEDR
B E 2 &5t R
B o
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T-TF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
31. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-
sale equity securities held at the balance sheet date and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies

set out in notes | (f) and (k).

The investment revaluation reserve is not available for

distribution to equity shareholders of the Company.

Land and buildings revaluation reserve
The land and buildings revaluation reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

policies adopted for land and buildings set out in note

1 (g)(ii).

The land and buildings revaluation reserve is not
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the

Company.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents statutory reserve fund.
According to the articles of association of the
subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC, the subsidiaries
are required to transfer at least 10% of their net profit,
as determined in accordance with the PRC accounting
rules and regulations applicable to enterprises with
foreign investment, to the statutory reserve fund until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made

before distribution of a dividend.

3. RAE - RAERKRE (&)

(d) RENEERRRR#E)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

REEZHE
REEHFEEESNREER
BEUHEERSFLATEE
WEFTFEE  TREHRN
Ml ()R (K& 5T R E
7 o

REEMRBETRTHIIKT
AABREFEA -

ITHREFERGHE
ANTERITHREFE
L WRIERE TR
PR BUR (BEEE1(g) (i)
BRIRELEHE -

THREF o EGMREL R
AHDIKT AR BDRERSE
AO

Ht e
HithEEARLIERERS -
RIEAREBE R E 2 B
AzAEBERMR > MEA
AAEBAERBEANRNE
EZHEETRAREHA
BEEZMARNZZEDIREE
EREES  HEEHESE
ERTFMER250%5 1k o
MZEEMEFERSELD
B B AIEDL ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T-TF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
31. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(e) Distributability of reserves

®

At 31 March 2010, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company,
as calculated under the provisions of section 79B of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was $444,048,000 (2009:
$355,060,000). After the balance sheet date the directors
proposed a final dividend of $0.06 per share (2009: $0.09 per
share), amounting to $12,622,000 (2009: $18,933,000). This
dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the balance

sheet date.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a
net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which includes interest-bearing
loans and borrowings) plus unaccrued proposed dividends less
cash and cash equivalents (which excluded pledged deposits).
Adjusted capital comprises all component of equity, less

unaccrued proposed dividends.

kLR K A B A& ¥

3. RAE - RAERKRE (&)

(e) AR IRFEE

®

R-E-ZTHE=ZF=+-—-8"
BIEE B (DA RH) E79BIF
FECAQATATHRIIRFARA
AREREEANRELRES
444,048,000T (ZEF h F :
355,060,0007T) - A4 E H % >
EEERREARBBREER0.06
T(ZZEZNF  §R0.09T)
& 512,622,000 (ZZEZNF -
18,933,0007tT) ° 2R ENEE R
HMARRABEE-

EXREE
FEBEEERANTEBENRE
REBEAFELE  BBEE
HERKFEBNERRREE
BRUSENKARE  Emae
SR RR B E 8K @ H AR
BALTRERE -

rEEBEEREHRNREERA
BERRERE  BREFEEKTR
BEARRNFE - KSEENKF
AREESRSRREHMmERN
EXRRAAUBRER - AEER
BEEBANSHMBERRERE
EHAE o

REBRRBREHFEHLEARE
R RMEEEREGAZE - i
mE  AEEEERFERE
REBLE (BETEERRE
) MEFRFERRERR
ERREEEN (FEEERE
M) EABRERBERREDRR
FRFTHRIKRE ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RHILFE (L&)

31. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 3. BA - RERKRE (&

BEXREE(F)

REAMREE AEEFREBE
REE 2R #RFFEKY
BRABEARL RN -ESEKX
FoREFRAELE . AEH
FHIRNTFRROKRESEFL
RBEBTHRD  DRRRE
EX BEFNEEREILE
BEEURE -

(f) Capital management (continued) ()
During the current financial year, the Group’s strategy,
which was unchanged from the previous financial year, was
to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at a reasonable
level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt

financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

R-IBE-ZFR-ZZNF=A
=t—-H FEBHEREES

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 3|1 March 2010 and

2009 was as follows:

tERaT
The Group The Company
r& NG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-Z2F ZEZENF ZB-BF CZZZNF
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
F F F F
Current liabilities: RBEE
— Bank loans —-RITEX - 84,420 - 74,669
Total debt BB A% - 84,420 = 74,669
Add: Proposed dividends e ERRE 12,622 18,933 12,622 18,933
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BRERREEEY (184,770) (116,153) (87,179) (38,945)
Net debt BRFE (172,148) (12,800) (74,557) 54,657
Total equity k] 969,752 884,619 669,414 583,829
Less: Proposed dividends RIS (12,622) (18,933) (12,622) (18,933)
Adjusted capital CRBER 957,130 865,686 656,792 564,896
Net debt-to-adjusted BERFEHLCRE
capital ratio N N/A N/A N/A 10%

RABREWE QR TZEM
SNEREVE AN AR E TR I o

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject

to externally imposed capital requirements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-T-TF=A=t—ALFE WETH)

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group
is also exposed to equity price risk from its equity investment in
other entities and movements in its own equity share price. The
Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are

described below.

(a) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash
at bank, trade and other receivables, dividends and loans
receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing

basis.

In respect of cash at bank, the Group only places deposits
with major financial institutions, which management believe

are of high credit rating.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount and for all new customers. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. These receivables are due between 30 to
90 days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does

not obtain collateral from customers.

In respect of dividends and loans receivable, the Group only
invests and lends to those with creditworthiness. The Group
closely monitors the repayment schedules of dividends and

loans receivable in order to minimise the risk of default.

32. IKEKREERAFEE

FEEEEEELKBRPHBE
B - RBDES  FRAMMEER - &K
SETEAZREEMERIFREN
RERREARNSRESSTIIEH
RERR AEEEHEERARRE
AEEBAREEEERER 28R R
EERFEEFARAMT -

() EERR
AEEWEERBREZRERIT
TR ERERER - Hth U
EWERKREWRE -EEED
BREERR  TBETHERH
RZEERBRNEE -

RERRBT2ERME A&
BEREEEERABEREEN
Rz ERERBBIT LERER

MERERREMERZMS
REFHERBB-—TLBEEE
WAMEEFPREHEFISE
TE RS EFFE o NFFEEFR
EEFBASMNAPREZELR
BENRZED URZEZE
FrRBRERREFEEMEH
ZIBIRIE - RERWFTIAER
EHH%3I0E908 REH - K&
E-RITEEEFERKFR -

ERERERRERRE &
BERRENEBHREBREEEN
DNE BBV ENNER - A&
BRI EREWREMERER
HEERHE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F-BF=A=t—ALFE WETH)
32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(@

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer and significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the Group
has significant exposure to individual customers. The default
risk of the industry and country in which customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At
the balance sheet date, the Group has a certain concentration
of credit risk as 4.6% (2009: 11.0%) and 41.9% (2009: 33.9%)
of the total trade debtors was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively within

the manufacturing and sale of garments business segment.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet
after deducting any impairment allowance. Except for the
financial guarantees given by the Company as set out in note
34, the Group does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group or the Company to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial

guarantees at the balance sheet date is disclosed in note 34.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other

receivables are set out in note 23.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management including the short term
investment of cash surpluses. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and readily realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to

meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

32. BiIEMEERAFEBEE)

()

(b)

EERR (&)
TEBEAZHNEARBEE
TREEFNENSERTE
RERARBAEEPHNEREE
REAEERERNEFEEEXRE
RIGELE - BFFEEMNTHEEE
RMENRKBEEARREER
L BRERR -NEER X
EEEETOHRRBERBEER
HERKEBINEREFPMNE
RBRAEFEBIRR 2ERARR
ETRED B B46% (ZEZTHE:
11.0%) R41.9% (ZEFEhF .
33.9%) °

FEBRAZSNEERR RS
EERERTEESREENR
E{E (HBRBERER)  FRHE
4Tz AA DB B 2 M E
RO AEBALTEREELE
EEARAEAZFEERRNEA
ER -REHED  LEHKER
ZEERRE ERFIRAMEE4 -

BRAEEEEVIRRRH tE
WRmAZ 2 EERRZE -
HEREHNME -

REBETERE

AEERNZENEEERARLT
BEXG-HRTER  BERE
BHNEHRE - FAEEZHE
AEHEEBAMRER 2RBE

EEE URRHESREARS
RERAZREE 2 EWEHR

BEIEMBRBZRREARES
REE - LENHEHEZRAR

ETFE-
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the

earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to

32. iIKEAKMEERRATEE (&
(b) REELRK (&)

TRFVNAEERADRNIEST
ERBEREERNHBREL
HR > HEREHNLKRINE
WESHRE (BEREHOFIRT
EoRE  RMBETE - AlRE
BHERAEGFE) REAEER
ARARRBEEXMNAS -

pay.
The Group NE
2010 2009
—2-2F ZEENEF
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow
repayable Balance sheet repayable Balance sheet
within | year carrying within | year carrying
or on demand amount or on demand amount
EHEER EHNLEER
—FAH —FAH
RERHEE REREE
ZRIFR EEBER ZRIB EEEER
HRERE ZREE MR SR ZHREE
$°000 $°000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Bank loans RITER - - 84,671 84,420
Trade creditors FE A 8RR 88,695 88,695 100,270 100,270
Bills payable EREE 3,387 3,387 18,254 18,254
Accrued charges and EHEAR
other creditors HitEAHK 70,077 70,077 76,311 76311
Amounts due to ERBEELNT
related companies B 427 427 4,591 4,591
Amounts due to jointly BREEAT
controlled entities MIE 96 96 2 2
Amount due to a shareholder FEf—BRERFE 2,139 2,139 1,796 1,796
164,821 164,821 285,895 285,644
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. MKEKMEER ATFEEE)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REELRK (&)
The Company /N
2010 2009
—%-%% —EENE
Contractual Contractual

undiscounted

cash outflow

undiscounted

cash outflow

repayable Balance sheet repayable Balance sheet
within | year carrying within | year carrying
or on demand amount or on demand amount
BRLEAR BHEER
—FAx —FAH
RERHEE REXREE
ZRIFB EEEER ZRIB EEBER
HRERH ZREE MR SR ZHREE
$°000 $°000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Bank loans RITER - - 74,884 74,669
Trade creditors FE A 8RR 40,753 40,753 60,530 60,530
Bills payable EREE 2,567 2,567 5,606 5,606
Accrued charges and EHEAR
other creditors HiEAHK 19,337 19,337 23,390 23,390
Amounts due to EREENT
related companies Mg 396 396 - -
Amounts due to jointly BREEAT
controlled entities RIE 13 13 371 371
Amounts due to subsidiaries EAMBARRE 13,157 13,157 27,271 27,271
76,223 76,223 192,052 191,837
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. K EMEERATLEEREF

(c) Interest rate risk (c) FEEMR
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from long- rEBZFERBEERE RS
term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at B8 - RAUBANEREENEEG
fixed rates expose the Group and the Company to cash flow AREBEFEAEBRAQTD
interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. BEAZHRERENZREMNAFE
The Group and the Company monitors the level of its fixed BEAERRE AEBRADF
rate and variable rate borrowings, through managing the BEITESRMEEREBBENZOK
contractual terms of the interest-bearing financial assets FoUERHEEENZERATER
and liabilities. The Group’s and the Company’s interest rate REBEKFE HEEBBHAED
profile as monitored by management is set out in (i) below. RARDNBHRZE RN E D

T@H)FIR -

(i) Interest rate profile () FIFEZE
The following table details the interest rate profile of TRIFIAREFR AN TR
the Group’s and the Company’s net borrowings at the EEHEEEZRRLEE -

balance sheet date.

The Group The Company
REE LS
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E8-BfF b 13 “E-BF Z2ENE
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest interest
rate  Amount rate Amount rate  Amount rate Amount
BRA= &8 BRAE &8 EBAE &8 BRAZE E2
% $°000 % $000 % $°000 % $000

Al frz  Eolt fr  BEolk frz  Erlk fr

Fixed rate borrowings: EEFZEE -
Bank loans RITER N/A - 083% 40,000 N/A - 083% 40,000

Variable rate borrowings: HEFIEEE

Bank loans RITER N/A - L67% 4440 N/A - 1% 34669
Total net borrowings BELTE - 84,420 - 74,669
Net fixed rate borrowings £ S & FE

as a percentage of ERLR

total borrowings 2B N/A 47.4% N/A 53.6%
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

()

(d

Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis
At 31 March 2009, it was estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would decrease/
increase the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits

by approximately $371,000.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the balance sheet date. In respect
of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate non-derivative instruments held by
the Group at the balance sheet date, the impact on
the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense

or income of such a change in interest rates.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables, payables
and cash balances that are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk
are primarily Euros, United States dollars (“USD”), Pounds
Sterling, Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).

As the HKD is pegged to USD, the Group does not expect
any significant movements in the USD/HKD exchange rate.
However, management acknowledges that the Group is
exposed to fluctuations in the exchange rates for other

currencies.

32. BiIEMEERAFEBEE)

(c) FM=EREE &)

(i) BEE T
R-ZEBZBEAF=ZA=+—
B BREMEBHRFRIF
B RERBERLIA TR
I0EE BT EERAE
Bz BB RENRREZER
W18 H#I371,0007T °

BREIMIIRIEZREER
RAEMNRE  HAREERB
BaEMN(RREER) WD
REE REAREHRAE
EERECERTAREE
AEHENAFEEMNERER
- FREEAEHBEER
B2RBRRFESRITET
BFEENBRESRAERER
A HARBBRBRRIET
(RREEF) WEEERRA
NESHMTENZFANE
X HFWAEEE -

d) E¥ER

FEESRNEEAREIERE
BREBMSRDEERE LI
SIEHENEBERGMELENE
WERAN - BRBRARBEEAELR -
SIRLEABNERIEAR
R RE BIRARE-

HRBWEI TN NEEE
HEn BYEXIFAEEEKR
Ke o A EEERA AL
EEHHEMESERZFMEE -
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

A

N

A

32. iIEREERAFLEE (A

(d)

The following table details the Group’s and the

Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date to

currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities

denominated in a currency other than the functional

currency of the entity to which they relate. For

presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are

shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using spot rate

at the year end date.

EWRR (&)
() RILHEEBE

THRANARERAQFR
FEAMEAZ 2EBER
ZEEWRABRDEMSER
ZHEBMZTZHCHRRBEES
BENURDTHEEE LS
ZEWIHEMEL - AR
BAEEsEBRDREREHZ
EHERREDBEEZS
ZR e

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ES SO )

2010 2009
Z%-%F 5k
United Hong United Hong
Pounds  States Kong  Pounds  States Kong
Sterling  Dollars ~ Euros Renminbi ~ Dollars  Sterling  Dollars Euros  Renminbi  Dollars
X Eu EBE AR Ex R i BB ARE R
£000  $000  $000  $000  $000 000  $000  $000 000 000
fr  fx &1 fx  Fx Fx Fx Fr X
The Group Fie-3
Trade and other receivables FEMURS R AL M R 84 83,000 7,627 30,08 6 W09 6339 30252 -
Cash and cash equivalents BERRLLEN 10,947 52,236 828 - TS0 6665 39,609 909 - 4880
Trade and other payables EARRREMET (14 (39,145) (2,264 (58) - (665 (53471)  (1493) - -
Bank loans RITEX - - - - - T @68 (663 - -
Amounts due from/(to) L/ (Ef)
group companies SEAARE - - - - - N7 - - - (3538
Net exposure arising RECRREE
from recognised assets REENER
and libilties RETRE 10717 96,151 6191 30,024 3813 26390  S3ee4 5092 30252 (30507)
The Company N
Trade and other receivables WU EtEF: 1744972 1366 50 - 75 72365 1,79 23 -
Cash and cash equivalenss ~ BERBELZEY 10,947 29,960 828 - - 6665 26807 909 - -
Trade and other payables  EFERFG R EMEMNT (301) (26,332)  (758)  (20) - (65) (39481)  (182) - -
Bank loans RATER - - - - - (74 (33932)  (663) - -
Amounts due from/(to) e/ (FEfT)
group companies SERAHAE (13,303) (3,579) - (698) - 20,187 (105) - - -
Net exposure arising RECRIEE
from recognised assets REEBHER
and liabilities RERE (2,580) 45,021 1,436 (668) - 26388 25654 1860 3 -
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

32. BiIEREERAFLEE (A

(d) Currency risk (continued) d) E¥EKE)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BEEZH
The following table indicates the instantaneous change TRIIREAEB 2R BR
in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) F(REREEFN BREE
that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which BEXZSEAAESE (K
the Group has significant exposure at the balance EEEMEETHRIERR
sheet date had changed at that date, assuming all other BYMELEZNREHER
risk variables remained constant. In this respect, it is REMEARSHTE o Rt
assumed that the pegged rate between the HKD and the msE AEBRBREEEESE
USD would be materially unaffected by any changes in TR HEBERTERETR
movement in value of the USD against other currencies. HittE¥ o BER 2 E M5
THEREE-
The Group
r&H
2010 2009
—2-%F —ZENF
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) profit after (decrease) profit after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and

exchange rates retained profits

exchange rates  retained profits

HRBEER HRHERF

Ext7/ RRE R ExL7/ RIRBEA

(T ) A% (T %) 258

% $°000 % $°000

=) F BAk Fr

Pounds Sterling iR 5% 447 5% 1,102
(5%) (447) (5%) (1,102)

Euros BE 5% 258 5% 213
(5%) (258) (5%) (213)

Renminbi AR 8% 2,363 8% 2,021
Hong Kong Dollars BT (8%) (296) (8%) 2,806
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. MKEKMEER ATFEEE)

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as available-for-sale equity

securities (see note 21).

The Group’s listed investments are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Singapore. The listed investments in the available-
for-sale portfolio have been chosen based on their longer
term growth potential and are monitored regularly for

performance against expectations.

The Group’s unquoted investments are held for long term
strategic purposes. Their performance is assessed at least bi-
annually against performance of similar listed entities, based
on the limited information available to the Group, together
with an assessment of their relevance to the Group’s long

term strategic plans.

(d) Currency risk (continued) d) E¥EKE)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (continued) (i) DT (#E)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table ERAVRDMZERRR
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects HAEEBETZEREREE
on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax and DREEBTEYREERZ
equity measured in the respective functional currencies, ERBEABITUHRENNZ
translated into HKD at the exchange rate ruling at the ARBRBREBEN R ERS A
balance sheet date for presentation purposes. RS/ &g o

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in HREIMIIBEERESE
foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure EAREGAEEREER
those financial instruments held by the Group which BETEHEHIIMNER B EH
expose the Group to currency risk at the balance sheet TE  BEAEERIELF
date, including inter-company payables and receivables BEMSRERERE  Z
within the Group which are denominated in a currency EREUEFREL AL
other than the functional currencies of the lender or the EMIINNEMETTE - ZDM
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that would T EEBEIIELE NI IER
result from the translation of the financial statements RBERAEBSIRE T
of foreign operations into the Group’s presentation BYNER - ZOMIIUZ
currency. The analysis is performed on the same basis EENF2ZR-EEET -
for 2009.

(e) Equity price risk (e) RERM

FEEAZHRREBERTHEER
RESRAREZEREDAR
(RKIEE21) ©

REE 2 EHRE R IIKE S
REMET -ERETHHER
BEHETHRENLETESRER
DRBERBERE D  XEBH
EERXRBLHBERNBER -

AEEFAE EHRENHEE
R R o HRBIIR BB
I UEES )23 [
AR E D — FWRTE -
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. K EMEERATLEEREF

(e) BRER (&)
REBTEASERAREGRE
BEMEECREESKAR  F
UBHATETIEAFEEREAE
BHMeMEBZARATAREZ
EEIEAR-

(e) Equity price risk (continued)
The Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from
changes in the Company’s own share price to the extent
that the Company’s own equity instruments underlie the fair

values of derivatives or other financial liabilities of the Group.

At 31 March 2010, it is estimated that an increase/decrease of —E-ZBF=A=+—H" 'R
10% (2009: 10%) in the relevant stock market index (for listed REMBHERTTE UEBR
investments), with all other variables held constant, would Eyig (EHIRE) BHIE IR
D10% (ZFZNEF 1 10%) @ fh5T
MM AR RE R R

[ 4

b

N

S

have increased/decreased the Group’s profit after tax (and

retained profits) and other components of consolidated equity

as follows: F(RRBER) REFEEREM
HAREDUT
The Group
K%M
2010 2009

—2-2F “2RNE

Effect on Effect on
profit after  Effect on profit after Effect on
tax and other tax and other
retained components retained  components
profits of equity profits of equity

HERE EaloyiEd
HARRE HEMES ERRRE  HHMbER
BAZEE BozyE BHEE WoeEE
% $°000 $000 % $000 $000
Bkt Fr Fr Bl Fr Fr

Change in Straits BRI
Times Index: 2g .

Increase 121 10% - 491 10% - 441
Decrease o (10%) - (491) (10%) (421 (20)
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(e) Equity price risk (continued)

U]

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of consolidated equity that would arise assuming
that the changes in the stock market index had occurred at
the balance sheet date and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to equity price risk at the balance sheet date. It is
assumed that the fair values of the Group’s equity investments
would change in accordance with the historical correlation
with the relevant stock market index or the relevant
risk variables, that none of the Group’s available-for-sale
investments would be considered impaired as a result of the
decrease in the relevant stock market index or other relevant
risk variables, and that all other variables remain constant.

The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2009.

Fair values

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value
The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
balance sheet date across the three levels of the fair
value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial
instrument categorised in its entirety based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value

measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

- Level | (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical financial instruments

A

N

il

32. BiIEMEERAFEBEE)

()

BB R (F)

BREIMATR  BRERTIEH
FHMEERBZERZEHER
HHAEE WEEAREHT
EXREERBAEZERIA M
ZEIASAKEREE B AKX
ZRERR HAREEZBRHRE
EANRRERF) RESERN
HM DS EER 2 E -
TBRRAEEREREZ D TE
EEREBERTIEAIEHERRE
SHERBEREMEZE  H
EHRETE  REB T H
HERETEEEBRRE HRE
DMERERBERBE - ZEDM
BE_ZZAFHEEZEEET -

NEEE

() BRAFEEIENEHTA
TRARAFEETENS
MIAERMBFEEZER
WEREE  RBREBUBR
HEAFTR(2HTE
FIMRELNFEEREN
ZELR EPSESHRIT
AENAFEEDREEEA
FEENTEEERTEN
BREMARBSE - FEAR
BINERNT :

- BB (RBMAD  fE
AR BRI TS A
R FCEY
(RERE) ERHE
f 2 P -
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 32. MKEKMEER ATFEEE)

(f) Fair values (continued) H DT EEGE)
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued) () BRAFEEIRYEHTA
(7

—  Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices - #HER:FEARRKRER
in active markets for similar financial instruments, HHEHPEUNEHRT
or using valuation techniques in which all BNHRE HMEEE
significant inputs are directly or indirectly based on WMAEEREEREE
observable market data LABEmSHEAR

BRAERNERTE
WRAFEE-

- Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using - HREB(RERR) &£
valuation techniques in which any significant input AEZEHABERETRMU
is not based on observable market data. ABREmSHEBEARE

ML ERMERFTEN
NFEE-
2010
—e-2HF
The Group and the Company
AEBRARAT
Level |
&A1
$°000
Fr
Assets BE
Available-for-sale equity securities: A ERERS
— Listed -t 4,910
During the year there were no significant transfers FRLZAEMIAHE
between instruments in Level | and Level 2. WA BRI 2 BE KR
i
(i)~ Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair (i) RFRFEESFEzEHBT
value Az FlEE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s FEERADAR=F—F

financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost FR-ZBENFZ=ZA=+—

are not materially different from their fair values as at 31 B DURE A 3 A8 8 85 AR A B BR

March 2010 and 2009. MEMTARAAFEEL

BEARER-
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(g) Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and

assumptions used in estimating fair values of financial

instruments.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Securities
Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date without any deduction for transaction

costs.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
The fair value is estimated as the present value of future
cash flows, discounted at current market interest rates

for similar financial instruments.

Financial guarantees

The fair value of financial guarantees issued is
determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by
reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing
the actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee
is made available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information

can be made.

B

32. BiIEREERAFLEE (A
AP EEZ G

UTE®T ANt emIAEY
NFEEENTEFTERBE -

()

()

(i)

AFPEEEREERZTS
BETE TSRS K
I o

wEEEREM

AFEERBRARAEER
ENREE LRECER
TAMNRTHEFNRERG

J

5_0

(iii)  BI FEIE1R

ERHMBERNAFEER
32 Rz AF RS EBUR
AW EL R B A T B E (40
BEHBLEER)  H2R
FRZBMEE - & ERE
BEBERERT ATRELE
BIRAI=R  BAETEERR
BT A W R B R R4 H EE
B (M BREERELT
SERfhET) ©
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33 COMMITMENTS . 33 R
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2010 not @ RZIE-—=Z=F=A=+-—-H8 1
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: RIEMERRAELEE 2 ERE
T
The Group The Company
S 5 NG

2010 2009 2010 2009

—E-%F C"ZTNF CZB-FF CZZTNF

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

F Fr F F

Capital commitments EREE (TERE
excluding the share of EERQTE)

jointly controlled entities:

Contracted for [EHES 19 19 19 19
The Group’s share of the AEBLEEE DR

capital commitments of REMHER

jointly controlled entities: R

Contracted for [EHES! 10,031 1,222 = -

Authorised but not 2IRE

contracted for BRETH - 567 - -

10,031 1,789 - -
10,050 1,808 19 19
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33. COMMITMENTS (continued) . . . . . ...... 33.ZFE@#; ...
(b) At 31 March 2010, the total future minimum lease payments by RZE—=Z=F=A=+—-HB ®
in respect of properties under non-cancellable operating BAUBRNEEHERERAEE
leases are payable as follows: N REVERESRBELAHD
g
The Group
KEH

2010 2009

—E-ZF —EEhF

$°000 $°000

FT FrT

Within | year —FR 3,512 2,248

After | year but within 2 years —FHREMFR 1,467 |
After 2 years but within 5 years “HF#BRFR 2,303 -
More than 5 years BEENE 1,404 -

8,686 2,249
Significant leasing arrangements in respect of land and REARMEEARENERL
buildings classified as being held under finance leases and land WREFREEEHEFAENL
held under operating leases are described in note 14. W BEREELZHHNMHEI4 -
Apart from these leases, the Group is the lessee in respect MEZZEHEN  NEBABBIEIR
of a number of properties held under operating leases. The REHSFENWENABAK -
leases typically run for an initial period of one to three years, ELHE-ROSHBHB—E=
with an option to renew the lease upon expiry when all terms FOWEHEREETIHARE
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent B EEERREOTENE
rentals. E-FIEHESHLTBESRE

HE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RHILFE (L&)
34. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

4. IEEERERE

Financial guarantees issued

As at the balance sheet date, the Company has issued guarantees
to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to its wholly
owned subsidiaries. The Directors do not consider it is probable
that a claim will be made against the Company under any of the
guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company at the balance
sheet date under the guarantees issued is the total amount of
facilities drawn down by subsidiaries at the balance sheet date
amounting to $820,000 (2009: $13,328,000).

The guarantees were issued by the Company at nil consideration.
The transactions were not at arm’s length, and it is not possible to
measure reliably the fair value of these transactions in accordance
with HKAS 39 had they been at arm’s length. Accordingly, the
guarantees have not been accounted for as financial liabilities and

measured at fair value.

ERHNMHEER

REER ARATGNECHRETZENES
DNEERF2RITBERRITIRME
RO EBLIIATREERRBEETME
REARQARRBCWFAD - RATRE
EHERARENBRSEEAMBLAR
M4 E B 52 K820,000t B (=&
ZAE ¢ 13,328,0007T) ©

HAABEH 2 ERILEAE - f&3F
ERZXZTHERETBEENSE
WREERZHEAFUAEARZ 2
NVEE BUZERRTSEL/Y
BEERFTEAFEEHNE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-T-TE=A=T-ALTE LUETH)

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS = 35 SEBEALZBEARS ...
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in MRERSBHERREMBARBEZR
these financial statements, the Group entered into the following SGRERIN  KREBTLULTEKRE

material related party transactions:

(a) Recurring transactions

BALREG -

(a) REMEXRS

2010 2009
—T-2F -ZTAF
Notes $°000 $°000
=3 T T
YGM Trading Limited and YGME ZHIRA T
its subsidiaries R EH & A A
(“ YGMT Group”) (TYGMTE£E ) (i)
Purchases of garment products by rEEBE
the Group RAXE B (iii) 2,148 4,976
Sales of garment products by AEEHEE
the Group FAKE (iii) 29,062 44,103
Rental income received and AEECD W R ER
receivable by the Group MEHTWA (iii) 3,854 3,864
Management fee received and AEECD W RER
receivable by the Group EEE (iv) 804 804
Building management fee AEEZWR
received and receivable by BT
the Group SR (iii) 288 288
Commission received and rEBEK KR
receivable by the Group iR N 428 805
Wouxi Changxin Textile Co., Ltd. EEREFHBER QT (if)
Purchases of traded products by AEEBE
the Group ESEM 7,805 36,610
Sales of traded products by AEEHEE
the Group E5Em 3 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. HEEBEATZERRS (#)
....... (SONBINUEA) || oottt s ettt et
(a) Recurring transactions (continued) () REMRS (&)
2010 2009
—®-2F C-BTLF
Notes $°000 $°000
=3 Fr F
Allied Textiles Limited FHEGEERA A (ii)
Purchases of traded products by rEEEE
the Group ES5Em 208 4,885
Chanson Asia Limited RHFEZMNERAT (v)
Rental income received and AEECD KR ER
receivable by the Group WMERTWA 46 -
Building management fee rEBEEK K
received and receivable by EWEF
the Group EEE 3 -
Chanson Limited RMEZERAA v)
Rental income received and AEED W RER
receivable by the Group WMEBRSWA 59 107
Building management fee ArEEZWR
received and receivable by BT
the Group EEE 4 7
WTCO07 Holdings Pte Ltd. WTCO07 Holdings Pte Ltd. (v)
Consultancy paid and payable rEEZTR
by the Group B ERE 960 960
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RHILFE (L&)

35. MATER

IAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Recurring transactions (continued)

Notes:

(iif)

Certain directors of the Company are collectively the

controlling shareholders of both YGMT Group and the Group.

Wouxi Changxin Textile Co., Ltd. and Allied Textiles Limited are
wholly owned subsidiaries of Wuxi No. | Cotton Investment

Co,, Ltd., a jointly controlled entity of the Group.

As certain directors and their associates are collectively
the controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of YGMT Group and the Group, the sales and purchases
of garment products and the rental income and building
management fees constitute connected transactions for the

Group under the Listing Rules.

The management fees were charged for administrative,
business strategy, personnel, legal and company secretarial
work, accounting and management services provided, which
are determined annually between the respective parties after

negotiations having regard to the cost of services provided.

Certain directors of the Company are collectively the
controlling shareholders of Chanson Asia Limited, Chanson
Limited, WTCO07 Holdings Pte Ltd. and the Group.

35, EBARHE

()

K H B

N

A

ALTZERRES (&

RENXZ ()

BaE -

0]

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

ARATETEEFFAYGMTE
ERAEEZERBEER -

BERMHBARDARIE
HGBAERARNYAAERZ
BERRAEH -RREERD
Az2EREAMBLR -

ETEERBFAYGMTERR A
EEZEZERRR(EER LR
Al Bt HERBERKE
M HEWAREFERERK
REBZHAERS °

EEBEWAERMTRIE %
BEE - AB  EERABDUE
I SHEEEREEE %
ERARHERALSFRERD
BREE -

AARETESRRARIE
MNERLR -RFEZERD
&) ~ WTCO07 Holdings Pte Ltd.}
REBZEZERRKRE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-F—TFZA=+—BLEE LUETH)
35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. BB AT CE ARG (&

(b) Outstanding balances due from/(to) related

(b) Y (EF)BREQT BEQ

companies, associates and jointly controlled entities: FAREEANTHIE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EEhF
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Amount due from YGMT Group FEWYGMTE B R 1E 3,020 2,116
Amount due to YGMT Group ENYGMTSR B FIE (33) (4,454)
Amount due from Chanson Limited EWRHFESERARNIE - 3
Amount due to Yangtzekiang ERARIBEER
Investment Co., Ltd. NERIE - (137)
Amount due to WTCO07 FEfFWTCO7 Holdings (394) -
Holdings Pte Ltd. Pte Ltd. 518
Amount due to Wuxi Changxin EAEGRFHB
Textile Co., Ltd. BIRABRE - ()
Amount due from Allied Textiles R AT T B L 4 4 B PR
Limited DNAEFIE 1,351 959
Amount due (to)/from Wuxi () EWESE 7T
Yangtzekiang Textiles Co., Ltd BEHBERDANRE (96) 68

36. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

36, LEEF

As a result of the application of HKAS | (revised 2007), Presentation HREMNEBSTEINE IR (ZZES
of financial statements, and HKFRS 8, Operating segments, certain Tt EBE) [HBEHRFHIFEIRE B
comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to the current R EERIESR [ AEAE T
year’s presentation and to provide comparative amounts in respect I EFHRBEFEHABRUFEARE
of items disclosed for the first time for the year ended 31 March EZ2% TREHEBE=Z-ZTF=
2010. Further details of these developments are disclosed in note B=+—-BLFEBXRKEERA 2t
2. BHHE ZEEzE-—SFBEAR

FffaE2 o
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z-ZTF=A=1+—RILFE (L&)

The Group believes the following critical accounting policies
involves the most significant judgements and estimates used in the

preparation of the financial statements.

(a) Impairment of trade and other receivables
If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of trade
and other receivables may not be recoverable, the assets
may be considered “impaired” and an impairment loss may
be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment of
assets. The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
are reviewed periodically in order to assess whether the
recoverable amounts have declined below the carrying
amounts. The recoverable amount of trade and other
receivables is the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return of similar assets. The
Group uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable

amount.

(b) Write down of inventories
The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged inventories
analyses, projections of expected future saleability of goods,
management experience and judgment. Based on this review,
a write down of inventories will be made when the carrying
amounts of inventories decline below their estimated net
realisable value. Due to changes in customers’ preferences,
actual saleability of goods may be different from estimations
and profit or loss in future accounting periods could be

affected by differences in these estimations.

37. BT A& R A

AEEMEEERRGS WBHRERE
UTHEANEIESTBRESREBE
EHFEFEE -

() EWRMKEMGERSRRE
B BN TR R E MR
Wk Y BR DB 7] BE DR IR E] - &
ZEETVREEAAICHEE] M
HEBETHESRESTBETE
RISE36SR [ & Z Bl fE | 1F BT -
JE A2 B o0 R L At B LA R A BR T
HERELER AT AERT
BEEEEEREEREEUT -
FEW BR R e E A FE IR B AT e =)
THREERENEEN TS O®R
EHBHARARREREBFEHE
R-AKBEERMETANESN
LATEE E B2 7] W B 2R 5 22 b 1R AT Y
T8

(b) MWREE
rEBSZFERE DT - B
RREYHEENTER EEEMN
KERHABREFENREAEE
HERER o i FE M REE K
ZEERAEGH TSR FE AKX
SEEREFHNE R MMRT
ENEE ERTFNRETRE
BESE BEREVHETRE
EETARE > M EFTAE AT
RERERFISGER -
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37. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(c) Deferred tax assets — future benefit of tax losses

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
I(r), the Group has recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses as at the year end based
on management’s assessment that it is probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and income tax charges in the period in which such estimates

are changed.

(d) Valuation of investment properties
The valuation of investment properties requires
management’s input in respect of various assumptions
and factors relevant to the valuation. The Group engaged
independent professional qualified valuers to conduct an
annual revaluation of the Group’s investment properties
based on assumptions agreed between the Group and the

valuers prior to adoption.

(e) Provision for long service payments
As explained in note 30, the Group makes provision for
lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to employees in both Hong Kong and the PRC.
The payments due are dependent on future events and recent
payment experience may not be indicative of future payments.
Any increase or decrease in the provision would affect profit

or loss in future years.

37. SRt HE R M5 (&)

(©)

(d

(e)

EEHRBEE-HREBRZARR
&

REMFI(NABE 2SS HE
HREEEFLRARETRESR
BB RAiRERARERE
£ B 2 B R DR 8 R R
AR ARECOHREEFL
ZEBFBEBERIDELRES
E o R RFRNMEERE

ZEEZRSEHRMTESHNB
WIEEFEREENERANME
B HBHTE -
REWMEME

REMEMGEEREEERHA
HEEARNEEBRRREE -
EEEABYEXSERNME
B RERRATRIEA S EERLE
B ENZERR  HEREY
EETFENML -

ROBREEERE

Wk EE30RTML  AREAX
BREBRGIENEESEE T
MTEEFLZRERMENAHN -2
BYRELER - RERBEH
XANTVRER B R B R I8
TR o 24 B9 (R 48 AN =R
D BREARFENRBARE
¥

\S

o

o

\
1
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38. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED tE2FEFECEMERKRE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL BMHERT - EARZETER
ACCOUNTING YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010 R i 52

38. REBZE-ZE—ZEHF=-A=+—H

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued the following amendments, new standards and
Interpretations which are not yet effective for the accounting year
ended 3| March 2010 and which have not been adopted in these

financial statements.

EEAMBHERER A BBES
MAECEMTFIMERT  HEAR
2B ER-ZE-ZEF=A=1+—H
ke ERFEEARER  REEKRE
WERARARTBRER -

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on e ERnR
or after FHEENK
HKFRS 3 EBUBREER  Business combinations EHEH I July 2009 “ZZNFtA-A
(revised) 3% (K88
Amendments BRI BB S ER Consolidated and HaR I July 2009 —EEhELA-H
to HKAS 27 EyyL separate financial BUHEHE

statements

Improvements to ~ —EENFHBEH
HKFRSs 2009 ERAZRE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s or the

Company’s results of operations and financial position.

IJuly2009or ZZEZNFLA-AFK
| January 2010 —Z-F5-f-A

REBEEEFELSEET  HEHR
R TR 0K FE R HA R 9 BT R R 9 2
E-HEHA BEMS KM LE
REHAEERAF AR 2EBEER
BERRTEBREFNEALE -
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'y PR

Details of the major properties of the Group are as follows: AREBFTEYEERFINNOT :
Location 8 Existing use Jiife3 Term of lease HEFH

Major properties held for investment

BERERABZEENE

The whole building 58 Commercial [5ES Medium-term FEBL
22 - 24 Tai Yau Street NEEH B

San Po Kong, Kowloon KB - 2485

Hong Kong 2iE

Units 10C3, 10D and I0EI on level 10 REARENE Commercial [ES Medium-term FEEL
Junyao International Plaza LETHER

No. 789 Zhaojiabang Road ERBRTI9

Xuhui District, Shanghai City YVREARES

The People’s Republic of China EJT10C3, 10DK 0EI

Unit 1508 on level 15 hEARLANE Commercial [5ES Medium-term REEL
Fudan Science Park Tower (Block I1) LETHRRE

No. 11 Guotai Road BRI

Yangpu District, Shanghai City EERRERE

The People’s Republic of China (111&) E 7T1508
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
Erﬁdﬁﬂ%Kong dollars)
(K ETat)
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
ZEERE  CZERtE ZEENFE  CZZENF  ZE2-%F
$000 $000 $°000 $000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Income statement BaRx
Turnover HER 1,600,981 1,725,435 1,540,276 1,625,529 1,310,042
Profit from operations meER 65,278 114,526 68,551 48,669 20,703
Finance costs MEMRAK (40,848) (19,099) (10,803) (9,238) (5,634)
Share of profits less losses of FE1GEEE A AR R
associates REE 3,474 (343) 1,523 1,151 1,306
Share of profits less losses of NG b
jointly controlled entities HEE 40,619 14,121 76,987 38,193 34,237
(Loss)/gain on disposal of HEBENT
associate (B8) /s (39.272) - - 4,684 =
Impairment losses on interest BENRERRER
in associate and dividend BENARERE
receivable from associate B (14,493) - (4,000) - (7,914)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of HENE QA
subsidiaries Wi/ (§iE) 960 (9,296) - - -
Impairment loss on fixed assets EEEERERE - - - - (21,014)
Gain on disposals of land and HELHREFR
buildings and investment RENENS
properties - - - - 81,133
Net valuation gains/(losses) on REMEME
investment properties Wi/ (BB) 38 23,299 10,231 18,866 (7,845) 20,915
Profit before taxation BB AR R 39,017 110,140 151,124 75,614 123,732
Income tax PREH (11,002) (13,670) (9,174) (3,447) (20,086)
Profit for the year REEREA 28,015 96,470 141,950 72,167 103,646
Attributable to: BESN
Equity shareholders of KARRESEA
the Company 25,275 96,706 142,240 71,877 103,479
Minority interests SHRRESR 2,740 (236) (290) 290 167
Profit for the year REEREA 28,015 96,470 141,950 72,167 103,646
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

hFEHE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BT ET)
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
“ZTIXRE CZZTtE CZZIN\E CZZThE CZB-Z%
$000 $000 $000 $000 $°000
Fr F F Fr Fr
Assets and liabilities BERERE
Fixed assets EEEE 224,334 240,239 262,849 249,137 189,987
Construction in progress REIR 26 42 291 609 -
Intangible assets BREE 2,874 2,874 2,874 2,874 1,569
Goodwill Be - _ _ _ -
Interests in associates BeNAER 14,810 14,671 12,110 6,586 -
Interests in jointly controlled entities & & 2\ A& 281,788 314,042 428,655 477,224 513,133
Other financial assets HihepERE 9,014 4586 1,453 5,986 5,820
Dividend receivable from a jointly EUWEEAARE
controlled entity - - - 28,678 -
Deferred tax assets EEFEREE 1,553 - 1,204 7,765 17,301
Net current assets REEETH 132,805 134,683 171,042 154,527 293,484
Total assets less current liabilities EERERRDER 667,204 711,137 880,478 933,386 1,021,294
Non-current liabilities FREEE (83,589) (31,660) (41,528) (48,767) (51,542)
Net assets EERE 583,615 679,477 838,950 884,619 969,752
Share capital R 105,184 105,184 105,184 105,184 105,184
Reserves #E 478,431 573,547 732,996 778,375 863,341
Total equity attributable to equity FER B RAD B RAE
shareholders of the Company FEAERSE 583,615 678,731 838,180 883,559 968,525
Minority interests LERFEER - 746 770 1,060 1,227
Total equity BRAE 583,615 679,477 838,950 884,619 969,752
Per share basis NERFTE
Earnings per share BREF HK$0.12 HK$0.46 HK$0.68 HK$0.34 HK$0.49
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